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Nature of Business 

 

Advanced Health Limited (“Advanced” or “the company”) establishes, invests in and manages day hospitals in Australia and South Africa. 
Our facilities are modern, compact and equipped to render same-day surgical procedures cost-effectively. These factors result in a 
strong focus on the quality of surgical outcomes at extremely competitive rates for patients and medical schemes.   

 

The group was established be way of a reverse listing of Advanced, details of which are fully disclosed in note 10 to this integrated 
report. 

 

Business objective 

We are inspired to grow our network of same-day surgical facilities by pursuing opportunities which will enable us to add value to our 
patients, partners, personnel and medical schemes. 

 

Vision 

We strive to be the industry leader, inspiring confidence by focusing on the delivery of cost-effective healthcare and enriching the lives 
of our patients, staff, associated medical practitioners and stakeholders. 

 

Mission 

We are proud of our achievements and will build on them to grow as a healthcare group which utilises relevant and cost-effective 
technology to add value to the business and its stakeholders. 

 

Our Values 

Our priority is to render cost-effective, quality healthcare on a same-day basis in facilities planned, built and managed to ensure that the 
best possible service is rendered to our patients.  We convey a warm and helpful attitude towards our patients. Our partnership 
philosophy, which is the cornerstone of our organisation, is built on teamwork, trust and integrity. 
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56.5% shareholding 

55.56% shareholding 72.58% shareholding 

94.65% shareholding 

100% shareholding 100% shareholding 

100% shareholding 

 

Business Review 

 

Company structure 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Day hospitals 

 At listing 

25 April 2014 

At year-end 

30 June 2014 

In progress 

30 June 2014 

South Africa 2 2 6 

Australia 3 3 1 

  

 

 

Key financial data 

 Year ended 
30 June 2014 

Forecast 

 pre-listing 

Revenue R155,8 million R154,9 million 

EBITDA R31,8 million R29,0 million 

Net profit before tax R23,3 million R20,5 million 

Net profit after tax R15,5 million R15,0 million 

Net profit attributable to parent company R7,7 million R7,5 million 

 
  

Advanced Health Limited 

(AVL) 

Advanced Health South 
Africa (Pty) Ltd  

(AH(SA)) 

Presmed Australia Pty Ltd 

(PMA) 

eMalahleni Day 
Hospital (Pty) Ltd 

(eDH) 

Medgate Day Clinic  

(Pty) Ltd 

(MDC) 

PresMed Unit Trust Trading as 
Ophthalmic Surgery Centre 

(OSC) 

Epping Surgery Centre 
Pty Ltd  

(ESC) 

Central Coast Surgery 
Centre Pty Ltd  

(CCSC) 

 

(MDC) 
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Chairman’s Report 

 

It is an honour to serve as the first chairman of Advanced. On 
behalf of the board, I reaffirm our commitment to achieve the 
group’s long-term objective and to implement and 
continuously refine a strategy which is focused on the 
achievement of our business goals. Similarly, management is 
committed to grow our share in the day-surgery market and to 
become a long-term, cost-effective and sustainable force in 
the short-procedure surgical healthcare niche. 

 

The board is confident that the investigation of the South 
African Competition Commission into the services rendered by 
private hospitals in South Africa will result in an affirmation of 
the valuable role day hospitals can play in rendering cost-
effective surgery on a same-day basis, also through private-
public partnerships. The objective of the commission is to 
make healthcare in South Africa more affordable and to enable 
additional players to participate in the private healthcare 
industry. Day hospitals are ideally suited to serve state patients 
and private patients who belong to low-cost medical schemes. 

 

Our board is committed to sound corporate governance, in line 
with the recommendations of the Third King Report on 
Corporate Governance (King III) in South Africa and the 
Australian Council on Healthcare Standards (ACHS) in Australia. 
Given the current size of the South African subsidiaries and the 
maturity of the Australian subsidiaries, the board will remain 
compact. Independent non-executive directors have been 
appointed as required to continue to ensure transparency and 
objectivity.  

 

The board has implemented several initiatives in Australia and 
South Africa to lay a sound foundation for developing 
transparent, sustainable and fair practices at both operational 
and company level to achieve best-practice in ethics, quality, 
human-capital, safety and transformation management. 

 

Presmed Australia achieved an outstanding accreditation 
result with ‘no recommendations’ from the ACHS at all its day 
hospitals. This is an obligatory clinical accreditation, 
incorporating quality and safety, and covers the entire range of 
National Standards and EQuIP ACHS Accreditation. This result 
is quite unusual in the healthcare industry, with the surveyors 
advising how impressed they were by the standards of clinical 
care and governance across the facilities. This sets the group at 
a recognised level with its specialist surgeons and is something 
to be proud of.  

 

I reflect with pleasure on the successful listing of Advanced’s 
shares on the Alt-X list of the JSE Limited on 25 April 2014. The 
substantial over-subscription of available shares as well as the 
subsequent strong demand for shares exceeded our 

expectations. My thanks go to everyone who formed part of 
the team that helped make this possible. 

 

Since listing, most of our activities have been focused on the 
implementation of our operational strategy to ensure that a 
proper foundation is laid for our objective to increase 
South African revenue to the level of Australian income. This 
will be done through the acquisition and development of day 
hospitals in partnership with associated medical practitioners.  

 

An agreement with day-hospital management company 
MedCeptional to develop four day hospitals in the Western 
Cape and one in Gauteng adds impetus to our expansion plans.  

 

The board endorses management’s goals to increase 
marketing to medical schemes in the light of the cost-effective 
treatment options we offer the funding industry. Regular 
communication with medical-scheme administrators and other 
stakeholders underpins this marketing drive. 

 

In Australia our objective is to strengthen and broaden our 
investment in ophthalmic facilities and to extend some of our 
units by incorporating additional same-day surgical services, 
such as dermatology, cosmetic, ear, nose and throat surgery.  

 

I thank my fellow board members for their ongoing and 
dedicated support to the growth and sustainability of the 
group. I cherish the lively, meaningful and objective input 
given by the directors. Welcome to MedCeptional’s Dr 
Johan Oelofse who joined the Advanced board. His expertise 
will add value to our objectives. 

 

Thank you also to our efficient management teams in 
South Africa and Australia, which have worked long hours to 
ensure that all our activities were implemented in a highly 
professional manner.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Frans van Hoogstraten 

Chairman 

29 September 2014
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CEO’s Report 

 

Advanced performed in line with financial projections in its 
prospectus, which was published a month before the listing of 
its shares on the JSE on 25 April 2014. In the year ended 
30 June 2014, revenue totaled R155,8 million (prospectus: 
R154,9 million, profit before tax was R23,3 million 
(R20,5 million) and attributable profit R7,7 million (prospectus: 
R7,5 million, translating into earnings per share of 6,44 cents 
(prospectus: 6,09 cents). 95 per cent of income was generated 
in Australia. 

 

Presmed Australia, in which Advanced holds a 94,65 per cent 
interest, once again reported a sterling performance with a 
14 per cent growth in revenue on the back of an 11 per cent 
increase in patient numbers. 

 

During the year under review, management has been actively 
involved with the finalisation of its plans to build the largest 
ophthalmic day hospital in Australia, a six-theatre facility with 
a Femtosecond cataract-laser procedure room and a few 
overnight beds. Management continues with negotiations to 
secure retinal support in this flagship development. 
Construction has started and completion is expected towards 
the end of 2015. 

 

Additional investments are being investigated to increase the 
company’s presence in the greater Sydney area and the 
eastern sea board of New South Wales. 

 

Advanced Health (South Africa) focused mainly on developing 
additional day hospitals in order to achieve its objective of 
aggressively expanding its footprint across the country. 
Growth will be based on the Advanced business model.  

 

The model offers participating medical practitioners a 
shareholding in the management company of each hospital, to 
ensure that medical quality objectives are met. Advanced 
retains the majority shareholding, concentrating on overall 
management, staff and increased efficiencies through central 
services such as information technology and accounting 
services. Properties are developed and owned by property 

developers, and tenure secured through a long-term lease 
agreement with Advanced. 

 

At the time of the listing of Advanced shares in April 2014, 
negotiations regarding the development of a day hospital in 
Soweto were at an advanced stage. This facility is expected to 
be operational by the last quarter of calendar 2015.  

 

Subsequent to the listing, we entered into a joint arrangement 
to develop five more day hospitals, one in Gauteng and four in 
the Western Cape. Construction of the first Western Province 
facility, in Durbanville, has started and it should be operational 
by June 2015. The construction of three of the remaining four 
facilities is scheduled to start in January 2015. 

 

We are confident that, by the end of June 2016, our 
South African subsidiary will be in control of at least seven day 
hospitals compared to the current two operational units. 

 

My sincere appreciation goes to the small but competent team 
that worked together to progress Advanced to the point where 
it is today. They have worked very hard to make our dreams 
come true and we are now looking forward to a future in 
which we can implement our dreams of a sustainable and 
prosperous group that benefits all stakeholders and offers real 
and lasting cost-reduction opportunities to the medical-
schemes industry. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Carl Grillenberger 

Chief Executive Officer 

29 September 2014  
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Board of Directors 

 

            

      

       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

           
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Frans van Hoogstraten (66) 

Non-Executive Director 

Dip. Law (UCT) 

 

Frans has practiced as an attorney, notary 
public and conveyancer since 1974 and is a 
retired director of Bowman Gilfillan Inc. of 
Sandton where he practiced in the firm’s 
corporate department.  As an experienced 
commercial attorney Frans has acted in a 
large number of major commercial 
transactions for local and international 
corporate clients. 

Carl Grillenberger (71) 

Chief Executive Officer 

B.Comm CA (SA), MBA 

 

Carl is a director of various associated and 
subsidiary companies in Australia and South 
Africa.  He has gained substantial 
knowledge of the healthcare industry in 
various countries and is well equipped to 
manage organisations involved in the 
rendering of various types of medical 
services. 

 

Cor van Zyl (67) 

Group Financial Director 

B.Com (Hons), CA(SA) 

 

Cor is a chartered accountant CA(SA) with 22 
years’ experience in the auditing profession 
as a partner of Coopers & Lybrand, before 
moving into commerce for a further period 
of 14 years. This included five years as 
Financial Director of Afrox Healthcare 
Limited and six years as Financial Director of 
African Oxygen Limited until his retirement 
in 2010.   

Philip Jaffe (74) 

Non-Executive Director 

B.Comm, CA(SA), HDip Tax, CA (Australia) 

 

Philip was a Senior Partner and 
subsequently Chairman of Moores Rowland 
(JHB) Chartered Accountants for roughly 25 
years and served on various other boards.  
Philip has a wealth of experience which 
entails 35 years in public practice and 
involvement in listing of approximately 20 
public companies on the JSE and the 
original secondary market DCM. 
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Tommy Mthembu (52) 

Non-Executive Director 

MB Bch (Rand), FC Ophth (SA) 

 

Tommy holds a MB Bch and FC Ophth 
qualification. He worked in private practice 
as a general practitioner from 1992 to 1996.  
In 2001 he qualified as an ophthalmologist 
and has been practicing as such.   

He is also an ardent businessman with keen 
interests in day hospitals. 

 

Marc Resnik (57) 

Managing Director Presmed Australia 

Dip Pharm (SA) 

 

Marc is a Business Executive and a 
Pharmacist, with more than 30 years of 
experience in the healthcare sector, 
involving directorship positions and 
ownership in both private and publicly 
listed healthcare companies.  Marc is the 
Managing Director of Presmed Australia Pty 
Ltd, a healthcare company that invests and 
specialises in the establishment and the 
management of ophthalmic day surgery 
hospital facilities in Australia 

 

 

Johan Oelofse (45) 

Non-Executive Director 

MB ChB 

 

Johan qualified as medical doctor at 
Stellenbosch University, after which he 
worked for 3 years in England, Wales and 
New Zealand. Back in SA, he completed his 
diploma in anesthetics and then changed 
his focus to ophthalmology.  He was the co-
founder of companies like SpesNet, 
MediCharge and MedCeptional.   

 

 

 

Cobus Visser (47) 

Alternative to P Jaffe 

BLC, LLB (UP) 

 

Cobus obtained a BLC LLB degree from the 
University of Pretoria in 1989.  Commenced 
articles with Gildenhuys van der Merwe Inc. 
in 1990 and became a partner in 1994.  He 
continued in practice until 1998 when he 
joined Bremer Investments at the end of 
1998.  He was appointed as Managing 
director in 2000 and still serves in this 
capacity today. He currently serves as 
Chairman and member of a number of 
boards. 
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Corporate Governance Report 

 

The directors of Advanced endorse the King Code and 
recognise their responsibility to conduct the affairs of 
Advanced with integrity and accountability in accordance with 
generally accepted corporate practices.  This includes timely, 
relevant and meaningful reporting to its shareholders and 
other stakeholders, providing a proper and objective 
perspective of Advanced.  

 

It should be noted that Advanced has been dormant since 
incorporation in April 2013 until the acquisitions in July 2013.  
In anticipation of listing, certain aspects of corporate 
governance have been introduced within the Group and the 
King Code has been applied throughout Advanced and its 
Subsidiaries in accordance with the JSE Listings Requirements 
for companies listed on the AltX.  The directors have, 
accordingly, established procedures and policies appropriate 
to Advanced’s business in keeping with its commitment to best 
practices in corporate governance.  These procedures and 
policies will be reviewed by the directors from time to time.  

 

The directors of Advanced have adopted the principals of the 
code, being fairness, accountability, responsibility and 
transparency.   

 

Remuneration policy 
The remuneration policy in place is to remunerate executive 
directors primarily on an incentive basis through profit share 
and/or options.  Where monthly remuneration is paid, this is 
market related. 
 

Advanced strives to be the industry leader in the provision of 
day surgery services, inspiring confidence by focusing on the 
delivery of high quality, cost effective healthcare and enriching 
the lives of our patients, staff and associated medical 
practitioners.  This requires a remuneration strategy that is 
attractive, within reason, to attract individuals with the 
required skills to make this Company a success. 

 

This policy defines general guidelines for the company’s 
incentive pay to the Board of Directors and Executive 
Management.  Non-executive remuneration must be approved 
upfront by shareholders at the annual general meeting. 

 

Executive and Non-executive directors’ remuneration currently 
comprise of the following elements: 

• Basic salary 

• Additional fees 

• Benefits – Incentive Bonus Scheme 

• Bonuses 

• Share options 

• Other benefits 

 

 

Basic Salary is subject to annual reviews and dependent on 
Company performance. 

 

Additional fees will be payable for attendance of meetings and 
additional time spend on the behalf of the Company. 

 

Benefits will comprise of participation in the companies 
incentive bonus scheme.  More detail will be provided on this 
at a later stage. 

 

Bonuses will be a discretionary payment and paid yearly in 
December. 

 

Share Options will be available for a period of 3 years from the 
end of each financial year.  There will be a limited on the 
number of share options and will lapse after a period of 
3 years from date on which the option was granted. 

 

Other benefits will be granted at the discretion of the board.  
These will include fringe benefits payable to directors. 

 
 Service contracts and compensation 

Advanced has entered into normal service contracts with all of 
its executive directors.  All non-executive directors are subject 
to retirement by rotation and re-election by Advanced’s 
shareholders at least once every three years in accordance 
with the Memorandum of Incorporation. 

 

Board of directors 

The board of directors meets regularly and discloses the 
number of meetings held each year in its annual report, 
together with the attendance at such meetings.  A formal 
record is kept of all conclusions reached by the board on 
matters referred to it for discussion.  Should the board require 
independent professional advice; procedures have been put in 
place by the board for such advice to be sought at the 
Company’s expense. 

 

Directors are expected to maintain their independence when 
deciding on matters relating to strategy, performance, 
resources and standards of conduct.  On first appointment, all 
directors are expected to undergo appropriate training as to 
the Company’s business, strategic plans and objectives, and 
other relevant laws and regulations in accordance with JSE 
Listings Requirements.  This will be performed on an on-going 
basis to ensure that directors remain abreast of changes in 
regulations and the commercial environment. 

 

The board is responsible for relations with stakeholders, as 
well as being accountable to them for the performance of the 
Company, and reporting thereon in a timely and transparent 
manner. 
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 

The offices of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are fulfilled 
by two different persons, in order to ensure a balance of 
power and authority so that no one person has unfettered 
decision making powers.  The roles of chairperson and chief 
executive officer are separated, with the chairperson being a 
non-executive director. Frans van Hoogstraten is the Chairman 
while Carl Grillenberger is the Chief Executive Officer.  

Board balance 

The board includes both executive and non-executive directors 
in order to maintain a balance of power and ensure 
independent unbiased decisions and that no one individual 
have unfettered powers of decision-making.  The board of 
directors of Advanced consists of 8 members, 5 of whom are 
non-executive and the majority of which are  

considered to be independent. 

 

Board meetings 

The board met three times during the year under review. 

 

Board and Sub-committee meeting attendance 2013/2014  

 

Director 

 

Board 

 

Audit & Risk 

 

   

Frans van Hoogstraten (chairman of the board)² 3/3 2/2 

Carl Grillenberger  3/3 2/2* 

Cor van Zyl 3/3 2/2* 

Phil Jaffe (chairman of the audit & risk committee)² 3/3 2/2 

Marc Resnik 3/3 n/a 

Tommy Mthembu² 2/3 2/2 

Cobus Visser² 3/3 n/a 

Johan Oelofse ¹  ² 1/3 n/a 

¹ - Johan Oelofse was appointed on 30 June 2014. 

² - Independent non-executive directors 

* - By invitation 

 

During the year under review, the Board Members were as follows: 

 

 

Non-executive directors 

Initials Name Surname 
Year 

appointed 

FA Frans Andre van Hoogstraten 2014 

PJ Philip Jack Jaffe 2014 

WT Wilfred Tommy  Mthembu 2014 

JY Ysbrand Jacobus Visser 2014 

J Johan Oelofse 2014 

 

 

    

Executive directors 

Initials Name Surname 
Year 

appointed 

CA Carl Alfred Grillenberger 2013 

CJPG Cornelis Johannes Petrus Gerhardus van Zyl 2014 

MC Marc Colin Resnik 2014 
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Responsibility 

The board is responsible for overseeing the preparation, 
integrity and fair presentation of the financial statements and 
related information included in the annual report.  The board 
is ultimately responsible for ensuring that adequate 
accounting records and effectives systems of internal control 
are being maintained.  Furthermore, management shall supply 
the board with the relevant information needed to fulfil its 
duties.  Directors make further enquiries where necessary, and 
thus have unrestricted access to all company information, 
records, documents and property.  Not only does the board 
look at the quantitative performance of Advance, but also at 
issues such as customer satisfaction, market share, 
environmental performance and other relevant issues.   

 

Appointments to the board 

Any member of the board can nominate a new appointment to 
the board, which will be considered at a board meeting.  The 
nominated director’s expertise and experience will be 
considered by the board as well as any needs of the board in 
considering such appointment.  In accordance with Section 21 
of the JSE Listings Requirements relating to companies listed 
on the Alternative Exchange, a nomination committee was not 
required for the year under review and the size of the 
Company does not warrant the establishment of a nomination 
committee.  A general meeting of the directors shall have the 
power from time to time to appoint anyone as a director, 
either to fill a vacancy, or as an additional director.  The 
Company’s MOI does not provide a maximum number of 
directors.  Any interim appointments will be subject to 
approval at the Company’s next general or annual general 
meeting. 

 

Directors Interest 

A full list of directors’ interest is maintained and directors 
certify that the list is correct at each board meeting. 

 

Directors recuse themselves from discussion and decision on 
matters in which they have a material financial interest. 

 

The board is assisted by the following committees in the 
execution of its duties: 

 

Audit and Risk committee 

A combined audit and risk committee has been established, 
whose primary objective is to provide the Board with 
additional assurance regarding the efficacy and reliability of 
the financial information used by the directors, to assist them 
in discharging their duties.  The committee is required to 
provide comfort to the board that adequate and appropriate 
financial and operating controls are in place, that significant 
business, financial and other risks have been identified and are 
being suitably managed, that the financial director has the 
appropriate expertise and experience and that satisfactory 
standards of governance, reporting and compliance are in 
operation.  The committee sets the principles for 
recommending the use of the external consultants for non-
audit services. 

 

The audit and risk committee has satisfied itself that no 
breakdown in accounting controls, procedures and systems 
has occurred during the year under review. 

In fulfilling its responsibility of monitoring the integrity of 
financial reports to shareholders, the audit committee has 
reviewed accounting principles, policies and practices adopted 
in the preparation of financial information and have examined 
documentation relating to the annual integrated report. 

 

The following independent non-executive directors have been 
appointed to the combined audit and risk committee: Philip 
Jaffe (Chairman), Frans van Hoogstraten, and 
Dr Tommy Mthembu. 

 

Nomination committee 

The Company does not have a nomination committee due to 
the size of the Company.   

 

Remuneration committee 

The company does not have a remuneration committee as this 
was not an AltX requirement for the year under review.  The 
recent changes in the JSE Listings Requirements will be 
considered in due course. 

 

Social and Ethics committee 

The social and ethics committee is a statutory committee 
whose focus is to monitor compliance with labour legislation 
as well as corporate social responsibility and corporate 
citizenship.  

 

The role of the social and ethics committee is to monitor the 
activities of the company and its subsidiaries, within a 
framework of legislative compliance and best practice, to 
support good corporate citizenship, stakeholder engagement, 
employee health and safety and the external impacts of the 
company’s operations, human capital, the implementation of 
transformation and B-BBEE, legal compliance and corporate 
ethics. 

 

The committee is authorised by the board to investigate any 
activity within the scope of its terms of reference, interact with 
employees and obtain external professional advice in 
conducting its business. 

 

In compliance with the Act, the following persons have been 
appointed to the social and ethics committee, namely 
Frans van Hoogstraten, Carl Grillenberger and Dr Tommy 
Mthembu. 

 

Internal Audit 

The Company does not have an internal audit function due to 
the size of the company.  This continues to be considered at 
each audit committee meeting and is a standing agenda item. 

 

External Audit 

The auditors of the Group are Mazars (Gauteng) Incorporated 
and it has performed an independent and objective audit of 
the Group’s financial statements.  The statements are 
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prepared in terms of the International Financial Reporting 
Standards (“IFRS”). 

 

Advice  

All directors have access to the advice and services of the 
company secretary who, inter alia, advises the board and its 
committees on issues relating to compliance, the JSE Listings 
Requirements and the King lll report on corporate governance.  
Directors are furthermore, with the prior knowledge of the 
chief executive officer, entitled to ask any questions of any 
personnel and enjoy unrestricted access to all company 
documentation, information and property. 

 

Dealing in securities by the directors 

The board has established procedures regarding the legislation 
which regulates insider trading, whereby there is a closed 
period from the date of the financial year end to the earliest 
publication of the preliminary report, the abridged report or 
the provisional report in the case of results for a full period 
and from the date of the interim period end to the date of the 
publication of the first and second interim results as the case 
may be, which periods are known as closed periods.  In 
accordance with the JSE Listings Requirements, no director or 
the company secretary shall deal in the securities of the 

company during a closed or prohibited period as well as whilst 
the company is trading under a cautionary.   

The company secretary or such person as may be nominated 
from time to time shall keep a record of all dealings by 
directors in the securities of the company 

 

Communication with stakeholders 

It is the plan of Advanced to meet with its shareholders and 
investment analysts, and to provide presentations on the 
company and its performance. 

 

Principles contained in King lll not complied with and the 
reasons for non-compliance 

The board endorses the principles contained in the King lll 
report on corporate governance and confirms its commitment 
to those principles where, in the view of the board, they apply 
to the business.  Compliance is monitored regularly and the 
board has undertaken an internal review process in 
determining compliance.  Where areas of non-compliance or 
partial compliance have been identified these have been listed 
below, together with the reasons therefore, as is required by 
King lll in accordance with the JSE Listings Requirements.

 

This table covers all 75 principles as set out in King III as required by the JSE Listings Requirements 

King III Ref King III Principle 

Comply/ 
Partially 
Comply/ 
Do Not 
comply 

Commentary 

CHAPTER 1 - ETHICAL LEADERSHIP AND CORPORATE CITIZENSHIP 

Principle 1.1 The Board of Directors of the 
Company (the Board) provides 
effective leadership based on an 
ethical foundation. 

Comply In accordance with the Board Charter the board is the 
guardian of the values and ethics of the group. 

Principle 1.2 The Board ensures that the 
Company is and is seen to be a 
responsible corporate citizen. 

Comply The social, ethics and transformation committee which 
reports to the board and shareholders reflects Advanced 
Health’s commitment to responsible corporate 
citizenship.  

Principle 1.3 The Board ensures that the 
Company’s ethics are managed 
effectively. 

Comply The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company 
protects, enhances and contributes to the wellbeing of 
the economy, society and natural environment.  

CHAPTER 2 - BOARDS AND DIRECTORS 

Principle 2.1 The Board acts as the focal point 
for and custodian of corporate 
governance. 

Comply The Board ensures that the Company applies the 
governance principles contained in King III and continues 
to further entrench and strengthen recommended 
practices through the Group’s governance structures, 
systems, processes and procedures.  

Principle 2.2 The Board appreciates that 
strategy, risk, performance and 
sustainability are inseparable. 

Comply The Board, as a whole and through its Committees, 
approves and monitors the implementation of the 
strategy and business plan of the Company, and sets 
objectives, review key risks and evaluate performance 
against the background of economic, environmental and 
social issues relevant to the Company and global 
economic conditions.   
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Principle 2.3 The Board provides effective 
leadership based on an ethical 
foundation. 

Comply See 1.1 above 

Principle 2.4 The Board ensures that the 
Company is and is seen to be as 
a responsible corporate citizen. 

Comply See 1.2 above  

Principle 2.5 The Board ensures that the 
Company’s ethics are managed 
effectively 

Comply See 1.3 above  

Principle 2.6 The Board has ensured that the 
Company has an effective and 
independent audit committee. 

Comply See Chapter 3 below 

Principle 2.7 The Board is responsible for the 
governance of risk. 

Comply See Chapter 4 below 

Principle 2.8 The Board is responsible for 
information technology (IT) 
governance. 

Partially 
comply 

See Chapter 5 below 

Principle 2.9 The Board ensures that the 
Company complies with 
applicable laws and considers 
adherence to non-binding 
rules, codes and standards. 

Comply See Chapter 6 below 

Principle 2.10 The Board should ensure that 
there is an effective risk-based 
internal audit. 

Do not 
comply 

See Chapter 7 below 

Principle 2.11 The Board should appreciate 
that stakeholder’ perceptions 
affect a Company’s reputation. 

Comply See Chapter 8 below 

Principle 2.12 The Board should ensure the 
integrity of the Company’s 
integrated report. 

Comply See Chapter 9 below 

Principle 2.13 The Board reports on the 
effectiveness of the Company’s 
internal controls. 

Comply See Chapter 7 and 9 below 

Principle 2.14 The Board and its directors 
should act in the best interests 
of the Company. 

Comply Directors are mindful of their fiduciary duties and their 
duty to act in accordance with applicable legislation. 
Records of Directors’ financial interests are kept and 
updated on an on-going basis.  The Board as a whole acts 
as a steward of the Company and each Director acts with 
independence of mind in the best interests of the 
Company and its stakeholders.  In its deliberations, 
decisions and actions, the Board is sensitive to the 
legitimate interests and expectations of the Company’s 
stakeholders.  

Principle 2.15 The Board will/has consider/ed 
business rescue proceedings or 
other turnaround mechanisms 
as soon as the company has 
been/may be financially 
distressed as defined in the 
Companies Act, 71 of 2008. 

Comply The Board is aware of the requirements of the 
Companies Act regarding business rescue. The Company 
is establishing a risk management process that will 
continuously evaluate controllable and non-controllable 
risks, threats and opportunities to ensure that the 
Company is operating optimally and is not in distress.  In 
connection with the issuance of the Interim 
and Provisional Results management has been requested 
to table a solvency and liquidity memorandum whose 
content will be regularly considered and confirmed by 
the Board.   
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Principle 2.16 The Board has elected a 
chairman of the board who is 
an independent non-executive 
director. The CEO of the 
company does not also fulfil 
the role of chairman of the 
Board. 

Comply The Chairman of Advanced Health is an independent non-
executive director.  The roles of the Chairman and Chief 
Executive Officer are separate and clearly defined.  

Principle 2.17 The Board has appointed the 
Chief Executive Officer and has 
established a framework for 
the delegation of authority. 

Partially 
comply 

While retaining overall accountability and subject to 
matters reserved to itself, the Board has delegated 
authority to the Chief Executive Officer and other 
Executive Directors to run the day-to-day affairs of the 
Company.  Mr CA Grillenberger is appointed as CEO.  A 
delegation of authority document is to be prepared and 
will be reviewed and approved by the audit committee in 
due course. 

Principle 2.18 The Board comprises a balance 
of power, with a majority of 
non-executive directors. The 
majority of non-executive 
directors are independent. 

Comply The board has an equal balance of independent non-
executive directors. There are five independent non-
executive directors and three executive directors, with 
one executive director being based in Australia. 

Principle 2.19 Directors are appointed 
through a formal process. 

Comply To ensure a transparent process, any new appointment of 
a Director is considered by the Board as a whole. The 
selection process involves considering the existing balance 
of skills and experience on the Board and a continual 
process of assessing the needs of the Company.  Directors 
are appointed in terms of the Company’s Memorandum 
of Incorporation and these interim appointments are 
confirmed at the next Annual General Meeting.  

Principle 2.20 The induction of and on-going 
training, as well as the 
development of directors is 
conducted through a formal 
process. 

Comply New appointees to the board are appropriately 
familiarised with the company through an induction 
programme and on-going training will be provided when 
needed.  Certain directors have already attended the 
director’s induction program in accordance with the JSE 
Listings Requirements. 

Principle 2.21 The Board is assisted by a 
competent, suitably qualified 
and experienced company 
secretary. 

Comply The Company Secretary is duly appointed by the Board in 
accordance with the Companies Act and the JSE Listings 
Requirements and is evaluated annually. The Board is 
satisfied that the Company Secretary is independent and 
is properly qualified and experienced to competently 
carry out the duties and responsibilities of Company 
Secretary.  

Principle 2.22 The evaluation of the Board, its 
committees and individual 
directors is performed every 
year. 

Do not 
comply 

Due to the company being dormant prior to the 
acquisitions in January 2014 this principle was not 
applied.  The performance of the Board as a whole and 
the Board Committees individually is currently not 
evaluated annually.  This will be considered in due course. 

Principle 2.23 The Board delegates certain 
functions to well-structured 
committees without abdicating 
its own responsibilities. 

Comply The board has delegated certain functions without 
abdicating its own responsibilities to the following 
committees: 

• Audit and Risk committee; and 

• Social, ethics and transformation committee. 

Principle 2.24 A governance framework has 
been agreed between the 
Group and its subsidiaries’ 
boards. 

Comply The governance framework between the Company and 
each of its subsidiaries that is not wholly-owned is set out 
in shareholders’ agreements, where applicable, and 
related agreements. The governance of wholly-owned 
subsidiaries is handled by Board and Board Committee 
resolutions.  

  



Advanced Health Limited Integrated Report 2014 14 | P a g e  

 

Principle 2.25 The Company remunerates its 
directors and executives fairly 
and responsibly. 

Partially 
comply 

The Board oversees the remuneration of Directors and 
Senior Executives and will make the determination taking 
into account market conditions, expert advice from 
remuneration specialists and in accordance with the 
Remuneration policy.  Non-executive Directors’ fees will 
be submitted annually to shareholders for approval at the 
Annual General Meeting.  

Principle 2.26 The Company has disclosed the 
remuneration of each individual 
director and prescribed officer.  

Comply The remuneration of Directors and Prescribed Officers 
has been included in the Integrated Annual Report.  

Principle 2.27 The shareholders have approved 
the Company’s remuneration 
policy. 

Comply The Company’s Remuneration Policy, approved by the 
Board is tabled for a non-binding advisory vote at each 
Annual General Meeting of shareholders.  

CHAPTER 3 - AUDIT COMMITTEES 

Principle 3.1 The Board has ensured that the 
Company has an effective and 
independent audit committee.  

Comply The Board has recently appointed an Audit and Risk 
Committee ahead of its listing and has since established 
and Audit and Risk Committee Terms of Reference.  The 
board considers that it has an effective and independent 
audit and risk committee.  The effectiveness of the 
Committee will be evaluated annually by the Directors.  
The group has an audit committee comprising three 
independent non-executive directors. 

Principle 3.2 Audit committee members are 
suitably skilled and experienced 
independent non-executive 
directors.  

Comply All members of the Audit and Risk Committee are 
independent non-executive directors. The Board will 
consider the independence (in terms of King III), skills and 
experience of the Committee members annually.  

Principle 3.3 The audit committee is chaired 
by an independent non-executive 
director.  

Comply The Board has appointed a suitably qualified Independent 
Non-executive Director to chair the Audit and Risk 
Committee.  

Principle 3.4 The audit committee oversees 
integrated reporting.  

Comply The Audit and Risk Committee will have oversight over 
the preparation of the Integrated Annual Report including 
the annual financial statements and sustainability 
information, and will recommend the approval of the 
Integrated Annual Report to the Board.   

Principle 3.5 The audit committee has ensured 
that a combined assurance model 
has been applied which provides 
a coordinated approach to all 
assurance activities.  

Partially 
comply 

Where necessary or relevant, the Company is committed 
to appointing service providers to provide independent 
assurance on both the financial and non-financial aspects 
of the business based upon their specific expertise and 
experience.  The audit committee will oversee the 
assurance activities to ensure that they are constructed in 
a coordinated manner.  

Principle 3.6 The audit committee is satisfied 
with the expertise, resources and 
experience of the company’s 
finance function.  

Comply The Audit and Risk Committee has evaluated the 
expertise and experience of the Financial Director and the 
company’s finance function and reviews this annually.  
The Committee has disclosed its satisfaction with the 
expertise and experience of the Financial Director and the 
finance function in the Integrated Annual Report.  

Principle 3.7 The audit committee should be 
responsible for overseeing the 
internal audit process.  

Comply The Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for 
overseeing the internal audit function.  The requirement 
for internal audit is considered on an on-going basis 
throughout the year and will be a standard agenda item, 
although at present, due to the size and nature of the 
business a formal internal audit function has not been 
established. 

Principle 3.8 The audit committee is an 
integral component of the risk 
management process.  

Comply The Audit and Risk Committee is an integral component 
for overseeing risk management. 
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Principle 3.9 The audit committee is 
responsible for recommending 
the appointment of the external 
auditor and overseeing the 
external audit process.  

Comply The Audit and Risk Committee oversees the external audit 
process, approves audit fees and non-audit fees above 
prescribed levels, reviews the independence of the 
external auditor including the professional suitability of 
the lead auditor and has recommended their re-
appointment to the Board and shareholders for the 
forthcoming financial year.  

Principle 3.10 The audit committee has 
reported to the board and the 
shareholders as to how it has 
discharged its duties.  

Comply The Audit and Risk Committee reports to the Board at 
each Board meeting.  A report to shareholders on how the 
Committee discharged its duties is included in the Report 
of the Audit and Risk Committee in the Integrated Annual 
Report.  

CHAPTER 4  - THE GOVERNANCE OF RISK 

Principle 4.1 The Board is responsible for the 
governance of risk.  

Comply The Board is responsible for the governance of risk and 
the Audit and Risk Committee assists the Board with this 
responsibility.  

Principle 4.2 The Board has determined the 
levels of risk tolerance.  

Do not 
comply 

Due to the company being dormant prior to the 
acquisitions in January 2014 this principle was not applied.  
The newly formed Board, through the Audit and Risk 
Committee has met and has agreed that it will monitor 
the controls and residual risk profile of the principal risks 
of the Group against set criteria/tolerance levels and will 
periodically review the levels of risk tolerance.  A risk 
register will be established in the forthcoming year. 

Principle 4.3 The risk committee and/or audit 
committee has assisted the Board 
in carrying out its risk 
responsibilities.  

Do not 
comply 

The Board is responsible for the governance of risk and 
the Audit and Risk Committee assists the Board with this 
responsibility.  Due to the company being dormant prior 
to the acquisitions in January 2014 this principle was not 
applied but will be addressed in the forthcoming financial 
year. 

Principle 4.4 The Board has delegated to 
management the responsibility to 
design, implement and monitor 
the risk management plan.  

Partially 
comply 

The board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility for 
risk management to management.  A risk management 
plan has not been established 

Principle 4.5 The Board has ensured that risk 
assessments are performed on a 
continual basis.  

Do not 
comply 

Due to the company being dormant prior to the 
acquisitions in January 2014 this principle was not applied.  
The recently formed Audit and Risk committee has agreed 
that it will actively monitor the group’s key risks as part of 
its standard agenda. 

Principle 4.6 The Board has ensured that 
frameworks and methodologies 
are implemented to increase the 
probability of anticipating 
unpredictable risks.  

Do not 
comply 

Due to the company being dormant prior to the 
acquisitions in January 2014 this principle was not applied.  
The newly appointed board has met and agreed that all 
risks are to be identified and steps to mitigate these has 
been outlined, including reasonably unpredictable risks.  
New procedures are being implemented and the audit 
committee also assists with this process.   

Principle 4.7 The Board has ensured that 
management has considered and 
has implemented appropriate risk 
responses.  

Do not 
comply 

The implementation of controls is monitored by 
management on an on-going basis.  This has not been 
done in the past as stated in Principle 4.6 above. 

Principle 4.8 The Board has ensured continual 
risk monitoring by management.  

Do not 
comply 

Responsibility for identified risks will be assigned to an 
appropriate member of the group’s senior management 
team, who is required to report to the board on the steps 
being taken to manage or mitigate such risks.  This has not 
been done in the past as stated in Principle 4.6 above. 
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Principle 4.9 The Board has received assurance 
regarding the effectiveness of the 
risk management process.  

Do not 
comply 

The Audit and Risk Committee has met and agreed that it 
will report to the Board regarding the efficacy of the risk 
management process.  Due to the company being 
dormant prior to the acquisitions in January 2014 this 
principle was not applied but will be attended to in the 
forthcoming year. 

Principle 4.10 The Board has ensured that there 
are processes in place which 
enable complete, timely, 
relevant, accurate and accessible 
risk disclosure to stakeholders.  

Do not 
comply 

Risk disclosure has been made in the Integrated Annual 
Report. The Board intends to disclose the top risks faced 
by the Company and will confirm its satisfaction with the 
management of the risk management processes.   

CHAPTER 5 - THE GOVERNANCE OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

Principle 5.1 The Board is responsible for IT 
governance.  

Do not 
comply 

Due to the company being dormant prior to the 
acquisitions in January 2014 this principle was not applied.  
An IT Governance Framework, including processes, 
procedures and structures, has not yet been adopted by 
the newly formed Board.  This will be considered in due 
course.   

Principle 5.2 IT has been aligned with the 
performance and sustainability 
objectives of the company.  

Do not 
comply 

Due to the company being dormant prior to the 
acquisitions in January 2014 this principle was not applied.  
The IT strategy and procedures will be aligned with the 
performance and sustainability of the Company in due 
course, bearing in mind its size and nature of its business.  

Principle 5.3 The Board has delegated to 
management the responsibility 
for the implementation of an IT 
governance framework.  

Do not 
comply 

Due to the company being dormant prior to the 
acquisitions in January 2014 this principle was not applied.  
It has been agreed that the chief financial officer will take 
responsibility for the implementation of an IT governance 
framework in due course.  This is not identified as a key 
risk at present due to the size and nature of the business. 

Principle 5.4 The Board monitors and 
evaluates significant IT 
investments and expenditure.  

Do not 
comply 

Due to the company being dormant prior to the 
acquisitions in January 2014 this principle was not applied.  
An IT Governance Framework has not yet been adopted 
by the new Board.  It is anticipated that a capital approval 
process will be put in place as part of the budgeting 
process.  Any unbudgeted spend would require a specific 
approval process. 

Principle 5.5 IT is an integral part of the 
company’s risk management 
plan.  

Do not 
comply 

See 5.4 above  

Principle 5.6 The Board ensured that 
information assets are managed 
effectively.  

Partially 
comply 

The Board is responsible for the management of 
information assets and expenditure, although due to the 
nature and size of the business, this is regarded as a low 
risk area. Due to the company being dormant prior to the 
acquisitions in January 2014 this principle was not applied.   

Principle 5.7 A risk committee and audit 
committee assists the Board in 
carrying out its IT responsibilities.  

Do not 
comply 

Due to the company being dormant prior to the 
acquisitions in January 2014 this principle was not applied.  
It has been agreed that the newly established Audit and 
Risk Committee will assist the Board with this function 
going forward.  

CHAPTER 6 - COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, CODES, RULES AND STANDARDS 

Principle 6.1 The Board ensures that the 
company complies with 
applicable laws and considers 
adherence to non-binding rules, 
codes and standards.  

Comply The Audit and Risk committee, together with the Social 
and Ethics Committee and Company Secretary, will review 
the adequacy and effectiveness of the group’s procedures 
on an on-going basis to ensure compliance with legal and 
regulatory responsibilities.  
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Principle 6.2 The Board and each individual 
director have a working 
understanding of the effect of 
applicable laws, rules, codes and 
standards on the company and its 
business.  

Comply The directors and the board understand the appropriate 
applicable laws, rules, codes of standards required by the 
company and its business. 

Principle 6.3 Compliance risk should form an 
integral part of the company’s 
risk management process.  

Partially 
comply 

Compliance risk will be considered by the Audit and Risk 
Committee and the Social and Ethics Committee going 
forward.  

Principle 6.4 The Board should delegate to 
management the implementation 
of an effective compliance 
framework and related processes.  

Do not 
comply 

Due to the company being dormant prior to the 
acquisitions in January 2014 this principle was not applied.  
This function will be delegated to management in due 
course.   

CHAPTER 7 - INTERNAL AUDIT 

Principle 7.1 The Board should ensure that 
there is an effective risk based 
internal audit.  

Do not 
comply 

Due to the company being dormant prior to the 
acquisitions in January 2014 this principle was not applied.  
The Company currently does not have an internal audit 
function as it is not deemed necessary by the Audit and 
Risk Committee due to the size of the Company. The need 
for this function will be reviewed by the Audit and Risk 
Committee at every meeting and the Audit and Risk 
Committee has agreed that this will be a standing agenda 
item.  

Principle 7.2 Internal Audit should follow a risk 
based approach to its plan.  

Do not 
comply 

See 7.1 above. 

Principle 7.3 Internal Audit should provide a 
written assessment of the 
effectiveness of the company’s 
system of internal controls and 
risk management.  

Do not 
comply 

See 7.1 above. 

Principle 7.4 The audit committee should be 
responsible for overseeing the 
internal audit process.  

Do not 
comply 

See 7.1 above. 

Principle 7.5 Internal audit should be 
strategically positioned to achieve 
its objectives.  

Do not 
comply 

See 7.1 above. 

CHAPTER 8 - GOVERNING STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIPS 

Principle 8.1 The Board should appreciate that 
stakeholder’ perceptions affect a 
company’s reputation.  

Comply The Company engages its stakeholders on multiple levels 
and this allows the Company to manage issues effectively 
and timeously and reduces the likelihood of reputational 
risks.   

Principle 8.2 The Board should delegate to 
management the authority to 
proactively deal with stakeholder 
relationships.  

Comply Management is responsible for maintaining stakeholder 
relationships. 

Principle 8.3 The Board should strive to 
achieve the appropriate balance 
between its various stakeholder 
groupings, in the best interests of 
the Company.  

Comply The appropriate balance is assessed on a continuous basis. 

Principle 8.4 Companies should ensure the 
equitable treatment of 
shareholders.  

Comply The Company will act in accordance with the requirements 
of the Companies Act and the JSE Listings Requirements 
regarding the treatment of shareholders.  

Principle 8.5 Transparent and effective 
communication with stakeholders 
is essential for building and 
maintaining their trust and 
confidence.  

Comply The Board is committed to a communication policy to 
ensure that timely, relevant, accurate and honest 
information is provided to all stakeholders.  
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Principle 8.6 The Board should ensure that 
disputes are resolved effectively 
and as expeditiously as possible.  

Comply The board ensures that disputes are resolved effectively as 
is possible. 

CHAPTER 9 – INTEGRATED REPORTING AND DISCLOSURE  

Principle 9.1 The Board should ensure the 
integrity of the Company’s 
integrated report.  

Partially 
comply 

The board is responsible for the integrity of the integrated 
report.  The first Annual Report has been issued for the 
period from incorporation to 30 June 2014. 

Principle 9.2 Sustainability reporting and 
disclosure should be integrated 
with the Company’s financial 
reporting.  

Do not 
comply 

The company’s vision and mission statements, strategic 
objectives and value system will be integrated into all 
policies, procedures, decision-making and operations, with 
sustainability as the ultimate objective. 

Principle 9.3 Sustainability reporting and 
disclosure should be 
independently assured.  

Do not 
comply 

At present the company does not intend obtaining 
independent assurance due to the size of the company. 
This will be considered in future. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Advanced Health Limited Integrated Report 2014 19 | P a g e  

 

Below is the table of risks identified in the prospectus with their current status. 

 

Risk Identified Mitigation Risk Current Progress 

Shareholder spread 
not achieved 

The prospectus provides for the refund of monies to investors 
and the Company will not list on the Alternative Exchange.  The 
JSE requires that the share subscriptions and monies received 
are audited by the Company’s auditor and signed off 48 hours 
before listing.   

Achieved – last count more than 1 
300 shareholders 

Investors will not 
receive shares 

The share subscriptions come via the STRATE system which 
provides for delivery against payment.  Subscriptions go 
through this system via the transfer secretaries and the shares 
are issue in electronic format to the subscribers. 
 

Achieved 

No dividends for 3 
years 

Company will be reinvesting profits into growth of day clinics 
by way of acquisition and also establishing new clinic, which 
investments are expected to increase the future prospects of 
the group in the medium to long term.  However, shareholders 
will be able to dispose of their shares in the open market and 
need not rely on dividend income.  Investors have been clearly 
informed on the intentions surrounding the dividend policy. 
 

Stated Company Policy per prospectus 

Availability of 
documents available 
for inspection 

Whilst these documents will be available for inspection for the 
period required in terms of the Act, some of the documents 
will remain available in the public domain on the Company’s 
website, such as the prospectus, which contains extracts of all 
relevant information for investors to review.  Going forward, 
the company will comply with the various disclosure 
requirements of the JSE. 
 

Continuously updated by company 
secretary 

Forecast profits will 
not be achieved 

The nature of the business is relatively simple and predictable, 
with the majority of the income being derived from existing 
and established day clinics, the majority of which is from 
Australia at present.  The company is exposed to foreign 
exchange movements as well.  These risks have been disclosed 
in the profit forecast assumptions as well as the extent of the 
risk. 

For 2014 it was achieved and the 
revised budget for 2015 also indicates 
that forecast will be achieved. 

Management will not 
run the business 
properly 

The core management team has been together for a number of 
years and know the business well.  The CEO remains indirectly 
as the main shareholder and key management hold minority 
interests as disclosed in the prospectus. 
 

Committed management team.   
All directors are required by the JSE to 
attend a 4 day course presented by 
the Institute of Directors on 
Governance and King III requirements. 
Monthly management meetings are 
held. 

Industry risk The healthcare industry has risks through competition in the 
hospital market, particularly in South Africa, which is 
dominated by three major hospital groups.  This risk is being 
mitigated through medical aids focusing on costs of medical 
care and introducing incentives to practitioners operating in 
day clinics.  Advanced Health’s target market is also expected 
to benefit in the long run from the Government’s National 
Health Insurance initiatives and focus on healthcare. 
 

Continuous engagements with 
medical funders. 

Financial information 
may be inaccurate 

The financial information and interim financial information has 
been audited and reviewed respectively by a JSE accredited 
auditor and IFRS experts were consulted. 
 

Approved by the JSE and the external 
auditors.  The audited results for 2014 
confirmed what was disclosed in the 
prospectus. 
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibility 

 

The directors are responsible for the preparation, integrity and fair presentation of the financial statements and other financial 
information included in this report. In presenting the accompanying financial statements, International Financial Reporting Standards, 
the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides, as issued by Financial Reporting Standards Council, the JSE Listings Requirements and the 
Companies Act of South Africa have been followed; applicable accounting assumptions have been used while prudent judgements and 
estimates have been made. 

 

The going concern basis has been adopted in preparing the financial statements. The directors have no reason to believe that the 
company or the Group will not be a going concern in the foreseeable future based on forecasts and available cash resources. The 
financial statements support the viability of the company and the Group. 

 

The financial statements have been audited by the independent accounting firm, Mazars (Gauteng) Inc., which was given unrestricted 
access to all financial records and related data, including all resolutions and minutes of all meetings of the shareholders, and the board 
of directors and committees of the board. The directors believe that all representations made to the independent auditors during the 
audit were valid and appropriate. 

 

The financial statements were approved by the directors on 29 September 2014 and are signed on their behalf. 

 

  



Advanced Health Limited Integrated Report 2014 21 | P a g e  

 

 

Audit and Risk Committee Report 

 

In terms of Section 94 of the Companies Act of South Africa 
(the Act), the Audit and Risk Committee reports as follows on 
its responsibilities performed. 

 

Objective 

The objective of the committee is to perform its statutory 
responsibilities regarding the appointment and independence 
of the external auditor as per section 94 of the Act, and to 
assist the board in discharging its corporate governance duties 
and responsibilities relating to financial reporting, auditing and 
the safeguarding of the company’s assets. 

 

Membership 

The Audit and Risk Committee consists of directors who are in 
the opinion of the board considered to be independent. The 
members of the committee are recommended by the Board 
and confirmed by the shareholders at the Annual General 
Meeting. 

 

Functioning 

The Committee met twice during the year and has performed 
its functions and responsibilities as set out in the Audit and 
Risk Committee Terms of Reference. 

 

External Audit 

The Committee has satisfied itself that the auditor of 
Advanced Health Limited is independent as defined by the Act. 

 

There is a formal procedure that governs the process whereby 
the audit firm is considered for non-audit services and the 
engagement of the auditor for such work is reviewed and 
approved by the committee. No complaints have been 
received by the committee relating to accounting practices and  

internal audit of the company, or to the content or auditing of 
the company’s financial statements, or to any related matter. 

 

The Committee has nominated for approval at the annual 
general meeting, Mazars (Gauteng) Inc. as the external auditor 
for the 2015 reporting period. 

 

Manoj Manilal is assigned by the firm Mazars (Gauteng) Inc. as 
the designated auditor for the Group. 

 

Annual Financial Statements 

The Committee has, based on the information provided to it by 
management and the external auditors, evaluated whether the 
financial statements are a true and fair view in all material 
respects, and have subsequently recommended the financial 
statements for approval to the board. The board has 
subsequently approved the financial statements which will be 
open for discussion at the forthcoming Annual General 
Meeting. 

 

Finance Function Competency 

As required by the JSE listing requirements par 3.84(h), the 
Audit and Risk Committee has satisfied itself that the Group 
Chief Financial Officer, CJPG van Zyl, has appropriate 
experience and expertise. In line with King III, the committee 
has also satisfied itself as to the experience, expertise and 
resources of the finance function. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PJ Jaffe 

Chairman 

29 September 2014 
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Approval and Declaration 

 

 

Approval of annual financial 
statements 

 

 

Declaration by Company Secretary 

 

 

Preparer of financial statements 

 

 

The annual financial statements and 
consolidated annual financial 
statements of Advanced Health Limited 
and its subsidiaries for the period ended 
30 June 2014, as set out on pages 23 to 
72, were approved by the board of 
directors on 29 September 2014 and 
signed on its behalf by: 

 

 

 

In terms of section 88(2)(e)/ 33(1) of 
the Companies Act of 2008, I certify 
that to the best of my knowledge and 
belief the company has lodged with 
the Companies and Intellectual 
Property Commission all such returns 
as are required of a public company in 
terms of the Companies Act of 2008, in 
respect of the financial period ended 
30 June 2014, and that all such returns 
are true, correct and up to date 

The annual financial statements and 
consolidated annual financial statements of 
Advanced Health Limited and its subsidiaries 
for the period ended 30 June 2014, as set 
out on pages 23 to 72, were prepared by 
CJPG van Zyl and were approved by the 
board of directors on 29 September 2014 
and signed on its behalf by: 

   

 

 

 

 
CA Grillenberger 

Chief Executive Officer 

Woodmead 

29 September 2014 

 

 

 

 

 

 

M Janse van Rensburg 

Company Secretary 

Woodmead 

29 September 2014 

 

 

 

 

CJPG van Zyl 

Financial Director 

Woodmead 

29 September 2014 
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Directors’ Report 

 

Nature of business 

Advanced Health Limited is an investment holding company 
that provides short-procedure surgical facilities and services in 
day hospitals in South Africa and Australia. 

 
Operational review 
Good performance was achieved across the Group with 
revenue up by R 29,6 million to R 155,8 million from the prior 
year.  

 
Operating profit amounted to R 23,9 million (2013: 
R 21,5 million). Profit after tax is at R 15,4 million (2013: 
R 13,7 million).   

 
JSE Listing 
With effect from 25 April 2014, Advanced Health Limited listed 
on the Alt-X Board. The Company listed approximately 
211 million shares, of which 80 million were offered to the 
public. 

 
Financial results and dividend 
The financial results are reflected in the attached Annual 
Financial Statements.  After a period of approximately three 
years, the Board of Directors will consider the payment of 
dividends on an annual basis based on achievement of profit 
and cash flow requirements. 

 
Going concern 
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the 
basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This 
basis assumes that funds will be available to finance future 
operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of 
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur 
in the ordinary course of business. 

 
Share capital 

On the 30 June 2014 the authorised share capital of the Group 
comprised 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares, of which 
211,614,/801 were in issue. 

 
The company's unissued shares have been placed under the 
control of the directors until the upcoming annual general 
meeting. 

 
For further details refer to note 17 of the financial statements. 

 
Share options 
The Group has entered into a share-based payment 
transaction with certain directors for a period of three years. 

 
For further details refer to note 18 of the financial statements. 

 

 
 
 

 
Material changes in non-current assets 
During the reporting period the group recognised goodwill 
amounting to R10,4 million for the acquisitions in South 
African subsidiaries.  
 
During the year, the Group acquired assets amounting to 
R 9 million from business combinations.  The Group also 
capitalised Intangible assets amounting to R 7 million, refer to 
note 8 and 10 for further details.  

 
Directors 
The directors as at the date of this report are as follows: 

Name Class 

CA Grillenberger Executive 

CJPG van Zyl Executive 

MC Resnik Executive 

PJ Jaffe Independent non- executive # 

YJ Visser Independent non- executive  

FA van Hoogstraten Independent non- executive # 

WT Mthembu Independent non- executive  

J Oelofse Independent non- executive  

 
# FA van Hoogstraten is the Chairman of the Board and PJ Jaffe 
is the Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee. 
 
Directors’ shareholding 
Directors’ shareholdings are set out in note 31 of the financial 
statements. 

 
Directors' emoluments 
Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 30 of the financial 
statements. 

 
Company Secretary 
The Company Secretary is M Janse van Rensburg whose 
business and postal address are set out below:  

 
Business Address:   Postal Address: 
Lifestyle Garden Centre  PO Box 1849 
Corner Beyers Naude &  Northwold 
Ysterhout Avenue.   2155 

 
Special Resolutions 
The following resolutions were passed during the course of the 
year: 

 
A special resolution was approved, in terms of section 45 of 
the Companies Act, 71 of 2008, whereby the company may at 
any time from the approval of this resolution date, for two 
years, provide any direct or indirect financial assistance to any 
one person or more related or interrelated companies or 
corporations of the company. 
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A special resolution to adopt the new Memorandum of 
Incorporation was passed in accordance with section 16(1)(c) 
of the Companies Act. 
 
A special resolution to change the company name. 
 
A special resolution for the approval of non-executive fees. 
 
Advanced Health (South Africa) Pty Ltd had a special resolution 
to change the name. 
 
No other special resolutions were passed by the subsidiaries of 
the group during the year under review 
 
Subsidiaries, Associates and other investments 
Information relating to the company's financial interest in its 
subsidiaries and other investments are set out in notes 37 of 
the financial statements. 

 

Borrowing limitations 
In terms of the Memorandum of Incorporation of the 
company, the directors may exercise all the powers of the 
company to borrow money, as they consider appropriate. 
 
 
 
Auditors 
Mazars (Gauteng) Inc. were appointed in office in accordance 
with section 90(6) of the South African Companies Act, 2008, 
and will continue in office subject to shareholder approval at 
the upcoming Annual General Meeting. 

 
Subsequent events 
Details of the subsequent events are set out in note 33 of the 
financial statements. 
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Independent Auditors’ Report 

 

We have audited the consolidated and separate financial 
statements of Advanced Health Limited set out on pages 26 to 
72, which comprise the statements of financial position as at 
30 June 2014, and the statements of comprehensive income, 
statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows 
for the year then ended, and the notes, comprising a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 

 
Directors' Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements  
The company’s directors are responsible for the preparation 
and fair presentation of these consolidated and separate 
financial statements in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards, the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides, as 
issued by the Accounting Practices Committee and the 
Financial Pronouncements as issued by Financial Reporting 
Standards Council and the requirements of the Companies Act 
of South Africa, and for such internal control as the directors 
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of 
consolidated and separate financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 
Auditors' Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
consolidated and separate financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
International Standards on Auditing.  Those standards require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated and separate financial statements 
are free from material misstatement. 

 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements.  We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

 
Opinion 
In our opinion, the consolidated and separate financial 
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
consolidated and separate financial position of Advanced 
Health Limited as at 30 June 2014 and its consolidated and 
separate financial performance and consolidated and separate 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards, SAICA Financial 
Reporting Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices 
Committee and Financial Pronouncements as issued by 
Financial Reporting Standards Council and the requirements of 
the Companies Act of South Africa. 

 
Other Reports required by the Companies Act 
As part of our audit of the consolidated and separate financial 
statements for the year ended 30 June 2014, we have read the 
Directors’ Report, the Audit Committee’s Report and the 
Company Secretary’s Certificate for the purpose of identifying 
whether there are material inconsistencies between these 
reports and the audited consolidated and separate financial 
statements. These reports are the responsibility of the 
respective preparers. Based on reading these reports we have 
not identified material inconsistencies between these reports 
and the audited consolidated and separate financial 
statements. However, we have not audited these reports and 
accordingly do not express an opinion on these reports. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mazars (Gauteng) Inc. 
Director : Manoj M Manilal 
Registered Auditor 
29 September 2014 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Advanced Health Limited Integrated Report 2014 26 | P a g e  

 

 

Financial Statements 

Consolidated statement of financial position 
             2014   2013  

        Notes    R'000   R'000  

Assets 
       

Non-current Assets 
     

       82,537      52,300  

Property, plant and equipment 
   

8 
 

       60,601      49,607  

Goodwill 
   

9 
 

       10,411                 -  

Intangible assets 
   

11 
 

         7,992                 -  

Deferred taxation 
   

12 
 

         3,533         2,693          

Current Assets 
     

     164,997      40,245  

Inventories 
   

14 
 

         3,820         2,689  

Trade and other receivables 
   

15 
 

      13,976         8,600  

Other financial assets 
   

13 
 

         3,318                 -  

Cash and cash equivalents 
   

16 
 

     143,883     28,956          

Total Assets 
     

     247,535      92,545          

Equity and Liabilities 
       

Capital and Reserves 
     

     172,874      40,277  

Stated capital 
   

17 
 

     120,378            467  

Foreign currency translation reserve 
     

       31,297      26,354  

Retained earnings 
     

       17,876      10,136  

Revaluation Reserve 
     

         2,037         2,037  

Share based payment reserve 
   

18 
 

         1,286         1,283  

Non-controlling interest 
     

       15,462         5,489  

Total Equity 
     

     188,336      45,766          

Non-current liabilities 
     

       24,235      28,241  

Other financial liabilities 
   

19 
 

       14,512      15,401  

Finance lease obligations 
   

20 
 

         3,971      10,277  

Provisions 
   

22 
 

         1,264        1,269  

Deferred taxation 
   

12 
 

         4,488        1,294          

Current liabilities 
     

       34,964      18,538  

Other financial liabilities 
   

19 
 

        7,852         4,141  

Finance lease obligations 
   

20 
 

        7,796        6,408  

Trade and other payables 
   

21 
 

       13,540        5,278  

Provisions 
   

22 
 

         1,612           924  

Current tax payables 
     

         4,023        1,682  

Operating lease liability 
     

            141            105          

Total Equity and Liabilities 
     

     247,535     92,545  
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income 
 

      
 2014   2013  

        Notes    R'000   R'000  

Revenue 
   

2 
 

 155,791  126,153  

Cost of sales 
     

     (77,842)       (49,584)  

Gross profit 
     

       77,949         76,569  

Other income 
     

                 -            2,758  

Other operating expenses 
   

3 
 

     (53,969)       (57,748)  

Operating profit 
     

       23,980         21,578  

Investment income 
   

4 
 

          1,451                   -  

Finance costs 
   

5 
 

       (2,101)         (3,669)  

Profit before taxation 
     

       23,330         17,909  

Taxation 
   

6 
 

       (7,851)         (4,211)  

Profit after taxation 
     

       15,479         13,698          

Other comprehensive income for the year 
       

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss  
       

Foreign currency translation differences 
     

        4,943           3,240  

Total comprehensive income for the year 
     

       20,422         16,938          

Profit attributable to: 
       

Owners of the parent 
     

        7,740           8,894  

Non-controlling interest 
     

         7,739           4,804        
       15,479         13,698          

Total comprehensive income attributable to: 
       

Owners of the parent 
     

       12,683         12,135  

Non-controlling interest 
     

         7,739           4,804        
       20,422         16,938          

Earnings per share  
       

 - Basic/(diluted) (cents per share) 
   

7 
 

            6.44             9.83  
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity 
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   R'000   R'000   R'000  R'000  R'000   R'000   R'000   R'000   R'000   R'000  
           

Balance at 30 June 2012        467              -          467  2,037  1,283  23,114    1,242   28,143    2,316   30,459  

Profit for the year             -                -                -             -             -             -     8,894      8,894      4,804   13,698  

Other comprehensive income for 
the year 

            -                -               -             -             -     3,240             -      3,240              -      3,240  

Dividends             -               -                -             -             -             -             -              -   (1,632)   (1,632)  

Balance at 30 June 2013        467             -           467     2,037     1,283  26,354  10,136   40,277      5,489   45,766             

Profit for the year             -               -                -             -             -             -     7,740     7,740      7,739   15,479  

Other comprehensive income for 
the year 

            -               -                -             -             -     4,943             -      4,943             -      4,943  

Shares issued for acquisition of 
subsidiaries 

110,331  (88,467)   21,864             -             -             -             -   21,864     -   21,864  

Specific issue of shares  20,000             -     20,000             -             -             -             -   20,000              -   20,000  

General Issue of shares  81,284             -     81,284             -             -             -             -  81,284              -   81,284  

Capital raising fees  (3,237)             -     (3,237)             -             -             -            -   (3,237)              -   (3,237)  

Share-based payment expense            -               -               -             -            3             -  -                        3              -            3  

Dividends              -               -                -             -             -             -             -              -   (2,166)   (2,166)  

Change of interest in NCI - Note 
24 

            -               -               -             -             -             -             -              -      1,581     1,581  

Increase in NCI on reverse 
acquisition 

           -               -                -             -             -             -             -              -      2,819      2,819  

Balance at 30 June  2014 208,845  (88,467)  120,378     2,037     1,286  31,297  17,876  172,874   15,462  188,336  

Notes 17 17 17  18      
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Consolidated statement of cash flow 
 

  

       2014   2013  

        Notes    R'000   R'000  

        
Cash flows from operating activities        
Cash generated by operations    25    38,846    29,274  

Investment income    4            1,451               -  

Taxation paid    26         (4,947)    (3,091)  

Finance costs    5          (2,101)    (3,669)  

Net cash from operating activities              33,249    22,514  

 
Cash flows from investing activities        
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment    8          (4,242)    (3,648)  

Acquisition of intangible assets    11             (415)               -  

Acquisition of financial assets              (3,318)              -  

Subsidiaries acquired    10                670               -  

Net cash used in investing activities              (7,305)   (3,648)  

        
Cash flows from financing activities        
Proceeds from issue of share capital    17        100,824              -  

Capital raising fees    17          (3,237)               -  

Repayment of loans              (8,178)  (36,345)  

Proceeds from loans                         -         657  

Finance lease obligation              (4,948)    (3,288)  

Increase in financial liabilities                8,469             -  

Net cash (used in)/generated by financing activities              92,930  (38,976)  

        
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents          118,874       (20,110)  

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year              28,956          51,963  

Effect of translation of foreign operations              (3,948)         (2,897)  

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period            143,883          28,956  
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Accounting Policies 
 

1. Reporting entity 

Advanced Health Limited is a Company domiciled in the 
Republic of South Africa. The consolidated annual financial 
statements of the company as at and for the year ended 
30 June 2014 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries 
(together referred to as the Group and individually as Group 
entities) and Group's interest in associates. The Group's 
operations are aligned into two geographical regions namely 
South African and Australia. 

 

2. Basis of preparation 

(a) Statement of compliance 

The consolidated annual financial statements have been 
prepared in compliance with the Companies Act of South 
Africa, 2008, International Financial Reporting Standards, the 
SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as issued by the Accounting 
Practices Committee and the JSE Listing requirements that are 
relevant to its operations and have been effective for the 
annual reporting period ending 30 June 2014. 

 

(b) Basis of measurement 

The consolidated and separate financial statements have been 
prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following 
items, which are measured on alternative basis on each 
reporting date. 

 

Items Measurement bases 

Financial instruments Accounted for in terms of IAS 39. 

 

(c) Significant estimates, judgements and assumptions 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
IFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the application of policies and 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and 
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are 
based on historical experience and various other factors that 
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the 
results of which form the basis of making the judgements 
about carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not 
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ 
from these estimates. 

 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an 
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the 
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision 
and future periods if the revision affects both current and 
future periods. 

 

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, 
uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting 
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts 
recognised in the financial statements are also described in the 
accounting policy notes that follow and the following financial 
statement notes: 

 

 

Note 8 -  Plant, Property and Equipment 

Note 9 -  Goodwill 

Note 13 - Other financial assets 

Note 12 - Deferred taxation 

Note 14 - Inventories 

Note 15 - Trade and other receivables 

Note 22 - Provisions 

Note 18 - Share-based payments 

 

Measurement of fair values 

When measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the 
Group uses market observable data as far as possible. Fair 
values are categorised into different levels in a fair value 
hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques 
as follows: 

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for 
identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 
that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from 
prices). 

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on 
observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

 

The Group has established a control framework with respect to 
the measurement of fair values. The CFO has overall 
responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value 
measurements, including Level 3 fair values. 

 

The CFO regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and 
valuation adjustments. 

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or 
liability might be categorised in different levels of the fair value 
hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its 
entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the 
lowest level input that is significant to the entire 
measurement. 

 

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value 
hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the 
change has occurred. 

 

Impairment testing 

The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units and 
individual assets have been determined based on the higher of 
value-in-use calculations and fair values less costs to sell. These 
calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions. It is 
reasonably possible that the revenue growth rates and 
operating margins assumptions may change, which may then 
impact the estimations made and may then require a material 
adjustment to the carrying amount of goodwill and intangible 
assets.  
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The Group reviews and tests the carrying amount of assets 
when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the 
carrying amount may not be recoverable. In addition, goodwill 
is tested on an annual basis for impairment. Assets are 
grouped at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows 
are largely independent of cash flows of other assets and 
liabilities. If there are indications that impairment may have 
occurred, estimates are prepared of expected future cash 
flows for each group of assets. Expected future cash flows used 
to determine the value in use of goodwill and intangible assets 
are inherently uncertain and could materially change over 
time. They are significantly affected by a number of factors 
including production estimates, supply demand, project 
demands, tender specific jobs, operating margins and long 
term contracts together with economic factors such as 
inflation, interest rates, exchange rates and other industry 
specific factors. 

 

Taxation 

Judgement is required in determining the provision for income 
taxes due to the complexity of legislation. There are many 
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax 
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of 
business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax 
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes 
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is 
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such 
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax 
provisions in the period in which such determination is made. 

 

The Group recognises the net future tax benefit related to 
deferred income tax assets to the extent that it is probable 
that the deductible temporary differences will reverse in the 
foreseeable future. Assessing the recoverability of deferred 
income tax assets requires the Group to make significant 
estimates related to expectations of future taxable income. 
Estimates of future taxable income are based on forecast cash 
flows from operations and the application of existing tax laws 
in each jurisdiction. To the extent that future cash flows and 
taxable income differ significantly from estimates, the ability of 
the Group to realise the net deferred tax assets recorded at 
the reporting date could be impacted. 

 

Subsidiaries 

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group. Control is 
achieved when the group is exposed, or has rights, to variable 
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the 
ability to affect those returns through its power over the 
investee. 

 

The group also considers the following facts and circumstances 
in assessing whether it has power over an investee: 

a) Contractual arrangements. 

b) Rights arising from contractual arrangements. 

c) Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights. 

 

The group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if 
facts and circumstances indicate changes to the elements of 
control. 

 

Fair value of assets acquired in Business Combinations 

Fair values are attributed to the identifiable assets, intangible 
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired during a 
business combination. These fair values are determined by 
reference to active market values, or where these are 
unavailable, by reference to current market prices of similar 
assets or liabilities, or by applying a discounted cash flow 
model to the expected future cash flows to be generated. 

 

(d) Functional and presentation currency 

These consolidated and separate financial statements are 
presented in South African Rands (ZAR), which is the 
Company’s functional currency. All financial information 
presented in Rands, has been rounded to the nearest 
thousand. 

 

(e) Going concern 

The consolidated and separate financial statements are 
prepared on the going concern basis. 

 

(f) Business Combinations 

Fair values of all identifiable assets and liabilities included in 
the business combination are determined by reference to 
market values of those or similar items, where available, or by 
discounting expected future cash flows using the Group's 
discount rate to present values. 

 

3. Financial reporting terms 

These definitions of financial reporting terms are provided to 
ensure clarity of meaning as certain terms may not always 
have the same meaning or interpretation in all countries. 

 

(a) General accounting terms 

Company: A legal business entity registered in terms of the 
applicable legislation of that country. 

 

Foreign operation: An entity whose activities are based or 
conducted in a country or currency other than those of the 
reporting entity (Advanced Health Limited). 

 

Operation: A component of the Group 

- that represents a separate major line of business or 
geographical area of operation; and 

- is distinguished separately for financial and 
operating purposes 

 

Group: The Group comprises Advanced Health Limited, its 
subsidiaries and its interest in associates. 

 

Subsidiary: Any entity which is controlled by the Group. 

Acquisition date 

The date on which the acquirer obtains control of the 
acquiree. 
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Cash generating unit 

The smallest identifiable group of assets which can generate 
cash inflows independently from other assets or groups of 
assets. 

 

Consolidated Group financial statements 

The financial results of the Group which comprise the financial 
results of Advanced Health Limited and its subsidiaries, the 
proportionate interest in the financial results of its interest in 
associates. 

 

Control 

The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has 
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity 
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power 
over the entity. 

 

Discount rate 

The rate used for purposes of determining discounted cash 
flows defined as the yield on AAA credit rated bonds (for 
entities outside South Africa) and relevant South African 
Government bonds (for South African entities) that have 
maturity dates approximating the term of the related cash 
flows. This pre-tax interest rate reflects the current market 
assessment of the time value of money. To the extent that, in 
determining the cash flows, the risks specific to the asset or 
liability are taken into account in determining those cash flows, 
they are not included in determining the discount rate. 

 

Disposal date 

The date on which control in subsidiaries and significant 
influence in associates ceases. 

 

Fair value 

The price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. 

 

Functional currency 

The currency of the primary economic environment in which 
the entity operates. 

 

Long-term: A period longer than twelve months from the 
reporting date. 

 

Net Asset Value: The value of assets less the value of its 
liabilities. 

 

Net Tangible Asset Value: The value of physical assets less the 
value of liabilities.  

 

Other comprehensive income: Comprises items of income and 
expense (including reclassification adjustments) that are not 
recognised in profit or loss and includes the effect of 
translation of foreign operations and available-for-sale 
financial assets. 

 

Power: Existing rights that give the current ability to direct the 
relevant activities. 

 

Recoverable amount: The amount that reflects the greater of 
the fair value less costs to sell and value in use that can be 
attributed to an asset as a result of its on-going use by the 
entity. In determining the value in use, expected future cash 
flows are discounted to their present values using the discount 
rate. 

 

Related party: Parties are considered to be related if one party 
directly or indirectly has the ability to control or jointly control 
the reporting entity (Advanced Health Limited) or exercise 
significant influence over the reporting entity or is a member 
of the key management of the reporting entity. 

 

Revenue: Comprises turnover, dividends received and interest 
received. 

 

Share-based payment: A transaction in which an entity issues 
equity instruments, share options or incurs a liability to pay 
cash based on the price of the entity’s equity instruments to 
another party as compensation for goods received or services 
rendered. 

 

Significant influence: The ability, directly or indirectly, to 
participate in, but not exercise control over, the financial and 
operating policy decisions of an entity so as to obtain 
economic benefit from its activities. 

 

Turnover: Comprises revenue generated by operating activities 
and includes sales of products, services rendered, licence fees 
and royalties, net of indirect taxes, rebates and trade 
discounts. 

 

(b) Financial instrument terms 

Effective interest rate: The rate that exactly discounts 
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the 
expected life of the financial instrument or when appropriate, 
a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial 
asset or financial liability. 

 

Equity instrument: Any financial instrument (including 
investments), that evidences a residual interest in the assets of 
an enterprise after deducting all of its liabilities. 

 

Financial asset: Cash or cash equivalents, a contractual right to 
receive cash, an equity instrument or a contractual right to 
exchange a financial instrument under favourable conditions. 

 

Financial liability: A contractual obligation to pay cash or 
transfer other benefits or an obligation to exchange a financial 
instrument under unfavourable conditions. This includes debt. 

 

4. Significant accounting policies 

The accounting policies set out below have been applied 
consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated 
financial statements, except as set out under 'Changes in 
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accounting policies' below, and have been applied consistently 
by Group entities.  

 

4.1 Changes in accounting policies 

The Group has adopted the following new standards and 
amendments to standards. 

 

(a) IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements 

The objective of IFRS 10 is to establish principles for the 
presentation and preparation of consolidated financial 
statements when an entity controls one or more other entities. 
IFRS 10 introduces a new control model that focuses on 
whether the Group has power over an investee, exposure or 
rights to variable returns from its involvement with the 
investee and ability to use its power to affect those returns. It 
further sets out the accounting requirements for the 
preparation of consolidated financial statements. Refer to 
Basis of consolidation (Note 4.2) for the Group's revised 
accounting policy on subsidiaries. 

The Group concluded that the adoption of IFRS 10 did not 
result in any material change in the consolidation status of its 
subsidiaries. 

 

(b) IFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities 

New and comprehensive standard on disclosure requirements 
for all forms of interests in other entities, including joint 
arrangements, associates, special purpose vehicles and other 
off balance sheet vehicles. 

 

As a result of IFRS 12, the Group has expanded its disclosures 
about its interests in subsidiaries (see note 24)  

 

(c) IFRS 13 Fair value measurement 

IFRS 13 establishes a single framework for measuring fair value 
and making disclosures about fair value measurements when 
such measurements are required or permitted by other IFRSs. 
The standard defines fair value as the price that would be 
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. It replaces and expands the disclosure 
requirements about fair value. It replaces and expands the 
disclosure requirements about fair value measurements in 
other IFRSs, including IFRS 7. As a result the Group has 
included additional disclosures in this regard.     

 

In accordance with the transitional provisions of IFRS 13, the 
Group has applied the new fair value measurement guidance 
prospectively and has not provided any comparative 
information for new disclosures. Notwithstanding the above, 
the change had no significant impact on the measurements of 
the Group's assets and liabilities. 

 

(d) IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements 

As a result of amendments to IAS 1, the Group has modified 
the presentation of items of Other Comprehensive Income in 
its statement of Comprehensive Income (a name change the 
Group has elected not to adopt) to present separately items 
that would be reclassified to profit or loss. The Group has 
foreign translation differences on foreign operations. Refer to 
Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

(e) IAS 19 Employee Benefits 

The amended standard outlines the accounting requirements 
for employee benefits, including short-term benefits (e.g. 
wages and salaries, annual leave), post-employment benefits 
such as retirement benefits, other long-term benefits (e.g. long 
service leave) and termination benefits. The definition of 
short-term employee benefits changed to state that it is only 
short-term when it is expected to be settled wholly within 
12 months. The new revised standard further establishes the 
principle that the cost of providing employee benefits should 
be recognised in the period in which the benefit is earned by 
the employee, rather than when it is paid or payable, and 
outlines how each category of employee benefits are 
measured. 

 

As a result of the changes in IAS 19, the Group has now 
amended its disclosures for short term and long term benefits.  

 

4.2 Basis of consolidation 

(a) Business combinations 

The Group accounts for business combinations using the 
acquisition method when control is transferred to the Group. A 
business may comprise an entity, group of entities or an 
unincorporated operation including its operating assets and 
associated liabilities. 

 

On acquisition date, the consideration transferred is generally 
measured at fair value, as are the identifiable net assets 
acquired. The consideration transferred is the fair value of the 
Group’s contribution to the business combination in the form 
of assets transferred, shares issued, liabilities assumed or 
contingent consideration at the acquisition date. Any goodwill 
that arises is tested annually for impairment. Any gain on 
bargain purchase is recognised in profit or loss immediately. 
Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except if related to 
the issue of debt or equity securities. 

 

The consideration does not include amounts related to the 
settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such amounts are 
generally recognised in profit or loss. 

 

Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value 
at the acquisition date. If the contingent consideration is 
classified as equity, then it is not remeasured and settlement is 
accounted for within the equity. Otherwise, subsequent 
changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are 
recognised in profit or loss. 

 

If the initial accounting for a business combination is 
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the 
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts 
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those 
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement 
period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to 
reflect new information obtained about facts and 
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if 
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that 
date.  
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The measurement period is the period from the date of 
acquisition to the date the Group obtains complete 
information about facts and circumstances that existed as of 
the acquisition date – and is subject to a maximum of one 
year. 

 

Advanced Health Limited issued shares to acquire controlling 
interests in Presmed Australia, as well as in eMalahleni Day 
Hospital and Medgate Day Clinic through a local holding 
company, Advanced Health South Africa Pty Ltd. In terms of 
IFRS 3, the transaction has been accounted for as a reverse 
acquisition, and an accounting acquirer and acquiree have 
been identified. The accounting acquirer has been identified as 
Presmed Australia and the accounting acquiree has been 
identified as Advanced Health Limited and its South African 
subsidiaries namely Advanced Health South Africa Pty Ltd, 
eMalahleni Day Hospital and Medgate Day Clinic, collectively 
referred to as South African operations. 

 

(b) Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements reflect the financial 
results of the Group. All financial results are consolidated with 
similar items on a line by line basis except for investments in 
associates, which are included in the Group’s results as set out 
below. 

 

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised 
income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, 
are eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with 
equity accounted investees are eliminated against the 
investment to the extent of the Group's interest in the 
investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as 
unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no 
evidence of impairment. 

NCI is measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree's 
identifiable net assets at the acquisition date.  

 

Changes in the Group's interest in a subsidiary that do not 
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity 
transactions. 

 

(i) Subsidiaries 

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group 
controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, 
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has 
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the 
entity. The financial results of subsidiaries are consolidated 
into the Group's results from acquisition date until the date of 
loss of control. 

 

Investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s separate annual 
financial statements are stated at cost less any impairment 
losses. Transaction costs relating to the acquisition of a 
subsidiary are expensed during the year they occur in profit or 
loss. 

 

(ii) Acquisition of non-controlling interests 

The recognition of an increase and decrease in ownership 
interests in subsidiaries without a change in control is 
accounted for as an equity transaction in the consolidated 

financial statements. Accordingly, any premium or discount on 
subsequent purchases of an equity instrument from the non-
controlling interest is recognised directly in the parent 
shareholders’ equity. 

 

(iii) Loss of control 

Upon the loss of control, the Group derecognises the assets 
and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-controlling interests 
and the other components of equity related to the subsidiary. 
Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is 
recognised in profit or loss. 

 

4.3 Foreign currency translation 

Items included in the financial results of each entity are 
measured using the functional currency of that entity. The 
consolidated financial results are presented in Rands, which is 
Advanced Health Limited’s functional and presentation 
currency, rounded to the nearest thousand. 

 

(a) Foreign currency transactions 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the 
respective functional currencies of Group companies at 
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. 

 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies are translated to the functional currency at the 
exchange rate at the reporting date. Foreign currency 
differences are generally recognised in profit or loss. 

 

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies that are measured at fair value are translated to the 
functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the 
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items in a foreign 
currency that are measured in terms of historical cost are 
translated using the exchange rate at the date of the 
transaction. Foreign currency differences are generally 
recognised in profit or loss. 

 

(b) Foreign operations 

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including 
goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisitions, are 
translated into Rands at the exchange rates at the reporting 
date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are 
translated into Rands, at reporting date using average rates. 

Foreign currency differences are recognised in Other 
Comprehensive Income and accumulated in the translation 
reserve, except to the extent that the translation difference is 
allocated to Non-controlling Interest. 

 

4.4 Financial instruments 

All financial instruments are measured at fair value upon initial 
recognition when the Group becomes party to the contractual 
terms of the instruments. Initial recognition of financial 
instruments other than those carried at fair value through 
profit and loss includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, these instruments are measured as follows: 
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(a) Financial assets 

The Group’s financial assets are loans, trade and other 
receivables, cash and cash equivalents and available-for-sale 
financial assets and investments. 

 

Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or 
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active 
market. Such assets are recognised initially at fair value plus 
any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to 
initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any 
impairment losses. Appropriate allowances for estimated 
irrecoverable amounts are recognised in profit or loss when 
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. 
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that 
the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, 
and default or delinquency in payments (more than 60 days 
overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable is 
impaired. The allowance recognised is measured as the 
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the 
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the 
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition. 

 

Trade and other receivables carrying amount is reduced 
through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of 
the loss is recognised in profit or loss within operating 
expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written 
off against the allowance account for trade receivables. 
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are 
credited against operating expenses in profit or loss. 

 

Loans and receivables comprise loans, trade receivables, cash 
and cash equivalents and other receivables. 

 

For all financial instruments carried at amortised cost where 
the effects of time value of money are not considered to be 
material the instruments are not discounted as their face 
values approximate their amortised cost. 

 

The average credit period on sales of goods/services rendered 
is 30 days. No interest is charged on the trade receivables from 
the date of the invoice.  

 

The group assesses its trade and loans receivables for 
impairment at each reporting date. In determining whether an 
impairment loss should be recorded in the statement of 
comprehensive income, the group makes judgements as to 
whether there is observable data indicating a measurable 
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial 
asset. The impairment for trade and loans receivable is 
calculated on a specific basis, based on historical loss ratios, 
adjusted for national and industry-specific economic 
conditions and other indicators present at the reporting date.  

 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Subsequent to initial recognition, cash and cash equivalents 
are measured at amortised cost. Cash and cash equivalents 
comprise cash on hand and deposits held on call with banks. 

 

(b) Financial liabilities 

The Group’s financial liabilities are classified as financial 
liabilities at amortised cost. These liabilities consist of trade 
and other payables and borrowings. 

 

These liabilities are initially recognised at fair value plus any 
directly attributable costs. Subsequently these instruments are 
measured as follows: 

 

Trade and other payables 

All trade and other payables are measured at amortised cost, 
using the effective interest method. 

 

Interest-bearing borrowings 

Interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with 
any difference between cost and redemption value being 
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings 
on an effective interest basis. 

 

Non-interest-bearing borrowings 

Non-interest-bearing borrowings are stated at cost. 

 

For all financial instruments carried at amortised cost, where 
the effects of time value of money are not considered to be 
material, the instruments are not discounted as their face 
values approximate their amortised cost. 

 

(c) Derecognition of financial instruments 

Financial assets are derecognised if the Group's contractual 
rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire, or if 
the Group transfers the financial assets to another party 
without retaining control or substantially all risks and rewards 
of the asset. 

 

Financial liabilities are derecognised if the Group's obligations 
specified in the contract expire or are discharged or cancelled. 

 

4.5 Financial liabilities and equity instruments 

Classification as debt or equity 

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Group entity are 
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in 
accordance with the substance of the contractual 
arrangements, and the definitions of a financial liability and an 
equity instrument. 

 

Equity instruments 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual 
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its 
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are 
recognised as the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. 

 

4.6 Share capital 

Ordinary shares 

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs 
directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are 
recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects. 
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Repurchase, disposal and reissue of share capital (treasury 
shares) 

When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the 
amount of the consideration paid, which includes directly 
attributable costs, net of any tax effects, is recognised as a 
deduction from equity. Repurchased shares are classified as 
treasury shares. When treasury shares are sold or reissued 
subsequently, the amount received is recognised as an 
increase in equity, and the resulting surplus or deficit on the 
transaction is presented in share premium. 

 

4.7 Dividends 

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which 
they are declared. 

 

4.8 Property, plant and equipment 

Owned assets 

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost 
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses. 

 

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the 
acquisition of the asset.  

 

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and 
equipment is determined by comparing the proceeds from 
disposal with the carrying amount of the property, plant and 
equipment, and is recognised net within other income/other 
expenses in profit or loss. 

 

Leased assets 

Leases in terms of which the Group assumes substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance 
leases. Upon initial recognition, the leased asset is measured 
at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the 
present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to 
initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in the same 
manner as owned items of property, plant and equipment. 

 

Other leases are operating leases and the leased assets are not 
recognised in the Group’s statement of financial position. 

 

Subsequent costs 

The Group recognises in the carrying amount of an item of 
property, plant and equipment, the cost of replacing part of 
such an item when that cost is incurred, it is probable that the 
future economic benefits embodied with the part will flow to 
the Group and if its cost can be measured reliably, the carrying 
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. The costs of day-
to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are 
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. 

 

Depreciation 

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual 
value. 

 

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line 
basis over the estimated useful lives of each component of an 
item of property, plant and equipment. Leased assets are 

depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful 
lives of the asset. If it is reasonably certain that the Group will 
obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is 
then depreciated over the useful life of the asset. 

 

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative 
years are as follows: 

 

Item   Average useful life 

Buildings    40 - 50 years 

Medical Equipment  5 - 10 years 

Motor vehicles  5 - 8 years 

Computer equipment 3 - 6 years 

Furniture and fittings  10 - 13 years 

Office equipment  6 - 9 years 

Leasehold improvements 6 years 

 

The residual value, useful life and depreciation methods for 
each asset are reviewed at the end of each financial year and 
adjusted if appropriate. Land is not depreciated. 

 

The estimation of the useful lives of property, plant and 
equipment is based on historic performance as well as 
expectations about future use and therefore requires a 
significant degree of judgement to be applied by management. 
These depreciation rates represent management’s current 
best estimate of the useful lives of the assets. 

 

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of 
property, plant and equipment is included in profit or loss 
when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from 
the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment 
is determined as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item. 

 

4.9 Goodwill 

For the measurement of goodwill at initial recognition, refer to 
accounting policy note 4.2 (a). 

 

Goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment 
losses. In respect of equity accounted investees, the carrying 
amount of goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the 
investment, and an impairment loss on such an investment is 
not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part 
of the carrying amount of the equity-accounted investee. 
Impairments to investments in associates are allocated to the 
investment as a whole. 

 

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the 
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the 
determination of the profit or loss on disposal. Impairments on 
goodwill are not reversed subsequently.  

 

4.10 Intangible assets 

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated 
amortisation and any impairment losses. 
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The amortisation period and the amortisation method for 
intangible assets are reviewed at the end of each financial year 
and adjusted if appropriate. 

 

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a definite 
useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator 
that the asset may be impaired.  As a result the asset is tested 
for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is 
amortised over its useful life. 

 

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, 
on a straight line basis, over the finite useful life of the asset, 
to zero as follows: 

 

Item  Useful life           Remaining useful life 

Customer contract 10 years             9.5 years 

Licencing rights 10 years             9.5 years 

 

The amortisation of intangible assets is included in other 
operating expenses in profit or loss. 

 

The estimation of the useful lives of intangible assets is based 
on historic performance as well as expectations about future 
use and therefore requires a significant degree of judgement 
to be applied by management. These rates represent 
management’s best estimate of the useful lives of these assets. 

 

4.11 Inventories 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realisable 
value. The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of 
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in 
bringing the inventories to their present location and 
condition. The cost includes transport and handling costs, but 
excludes interest charges.  

 

Costs are determined on the following bases:  

Merchandise is valued on a weighted average basis.  

 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the 
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of 
completion and selling expenses. 

 

Write-downs to net realisable value and inventory losses are 
expensed in the period in which the write-downs or losses 
occur. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of 
inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value, is 
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories 
recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal 
occurs. The amount of the reversal of the inventory write-
down is limited to the carrying amount of the inventory had no 
write-down been recognised initially. 

 

4.12 Impairment  

(a) Financial assets 

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to 
determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is 
impaired. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if 
objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had 

a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that 
asset. 

 

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at 
amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its 
carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated 
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest 
rate.  

 

Individually significant financial assets are tested for 
impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial 
assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar 
credit risk characteristics. 

 

All impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. 

 

Reversal of impairment is only recognised to the value that the 
asset would have been had no impairment been recognised. 
Any impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related 
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was 
recognised. For financial assets measured at amortised cost 
the reversal is recognised in profit or loss. 

 

(b) Non-financial assets  

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, 
other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at 
each reporting date to determine whether there is any 
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the 
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. 

 

Goodwill is tested for impairment in terms of IAS 36 at least 
annually and at the same time each year.  

 

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is 
the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to 
sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows 
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value 
of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of 
impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the 
smallest groups of assets that generate cash inflows from 
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash flows 
of other assets or groups of assets (the ‘cash generating unit’). 
The goodwill acquired in a business combination, for the 
purpose of impairment testing, is allocated to cash-generating 
units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the 
combination. 

 

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying 
amount of an asset, or its cash-generating unit, exceeds its 
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised 
through profit and loss. 

 

Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating 
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any 
goodwill allocated to cash-generating units (group of units) 
and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in 
the unit (group of units) on a pro-rata basis. 
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The recoverable amount of the Group’s non-financial assets 
carried at amortised cost is calculated as the present value of 
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original 
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed 
at initial recognition of these financial assets). 

 

The recoverable amount of other assets is the greater of their 
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value 
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their 
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and 
the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not 
generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable 
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which 
the asset belongs. 

 

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. 

 

In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in 
prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any 
indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An 
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the 
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. 

 

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the 
asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or 
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. 

 

4.13 Provisions 

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position 
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation, 
that can be estimated reliably, as a result of a past event, and 
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation. If the effect is material, 
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future 
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and, where 
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. 

 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of 
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at 
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks 
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.  

 

4.14 Income tax 

(a) Income tax expense 

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. 
Current tax and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss 
except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, 
or items recognised directly in equity or in other 
comprehensive income. 

 

Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited directly 
to equity or other comprehensive income if the tax relates to 
items that are credited or charged, in the same or a different 
period, directly to equity or in other comprehensive income. 

 

 

(b) Current taxation 

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the 
taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any 
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. 

 

Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent 
unpaid, recognised as a liability. If the amount already paid in 
respect of current and prior periods exceeds the amount due 
for those periods, the excess is recognised as an asset. 

 

(c) Deferred taxation 

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between 
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial 
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the 
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are 
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. 
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible 
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible 
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets 
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference 
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than 
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a 
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit/loss nor the 
accounting profit/loss. Deferred tax liabilities are not 
recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with 
investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in 
joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the 
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the 
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable 
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary 
differences associated with such investments and interests are 
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will 
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the 
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to 
reverse in the foreseeable future. 

 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the 
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it 
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be 
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates 
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is 
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of 
the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax 
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would 
follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end 
of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying 
amount of its assets and liabilities. 

 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a 
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against 
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes 
levied by the same taxation authority, and the Group intends 
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. 

 

 

 

 



Advanced Health Limited Integrated Report 2014 39 | P a g e  

 

4.15 Revenue 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable for the sales of goods and the rendering 
of services in the ordinary course of the Group's activities. 
Revenue is shown net of indirect taxes, estimated returns, 
rebates and trade discounts and after eliminating sales within 
the Group.  

 

(a) Sale of goods 

The Group provides same day medication and medical supplies 
as part of the provision of its healthcare services. Revenue 
from sale of goods is recognised when it is probable that the 
economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to 
the Group and the amount of revenue, and associated costs 
incurred or to be incurred, can be measured reliably. The 
amount of revenue is not considered to be reliably measurable 
until all contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved. 

 

(b) Rendering of services 

The Group provides acute healthcare services and operates 
same-day surgical centres. The revenue recognized relates to 
invoiced fees for private healthcare and fees for healthcare 
services. Some services are provided on a fixed-price basis. 

 

(c) Rental income 

Rental income from subleased property is recognised on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the lease in line with IAS 17. 

 

(d) Interest received 

Interest is recognised, in profit or loss, using the effective 
interest rate method. 

 

(e) Dividends received 

Dividends are recognised, in profit or loss, when the 
Company’s right to receive payment has been established. 

 

4.16 Employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits 

The cost of short-term employee benefits, are recognised in 
the period in which the service is rendered and are not 
discounted. 

 

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as 
an expense as the employees render services that increase 
their entitlement, or in the case of non-accumulating 
absences, when the absence occurs. 

 

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments is 
recognised as an expense when there is a legal or constructive 
obligation to make such payments as a result of past 
performance. 

 

Defined contribution plans 

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are 
charged as an expense as related service is rendered. The plan 
is governed by the Pension Funds Act.  

 

 

Share-based payments 

The Group issues equity-settled share options to its executive 
employees and management. The fair value of options granted 
is recognised as an expense with a corresponding increase in 
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date and is spread 
over the period during which the employees become 
unconditionally entitled to the option. Fair value is measured 
using the Binomial option-pricing model taking into account 
the term and conditions upon which the options were granted. 
The Group revises at each reporting date its estimate of the 
number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision to 
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss with a 
corresponding adjustment to equity. 

 

Share-based payments, granted that do not vest until the 
counterparty completes a specified period of service, are 
accounted for as the services rendered by the counterparty. 

 

The key assumptions for staff turnover per annum, early-
exercise multiple, risk-free rate, share price volatility and 
dividend yield are based on management's best estimate at 
the date of valuation. 

 

4.17 Expenses 

Leased payments 

(a) Operating lease payments 

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in 
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 
Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part of 
the total lease expense, over the term of the lease. 

 

(b) Finance lease payments 

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the 
finance expense and the reduction of the outstanding liability. 
The finance expense is calculated using the effective interest 
rate method. The finance expense component of finance lease 
payments is recognised in profit and loss.  

 

4.18 Investment income and finance costs 

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested 
and dividend income. 

 

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings, 
finance leases and bank overdrafts. 

 

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis 
as either finance income or finance cost depending on whether 
foreign currency movements are in a net gain or net loss 
position. 

 

4.19 Borrowing costs 

There is no borrowing related to qualifying assets.  

 

Any other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in 
the period in which they are incurred. 
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4.20 Earnings per share and headline earnings per share 

(a) Earnings per share  

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share data 
for its ordinary shares. Basic earnings per share is calculated by 
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders 
of the Group by the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares outstanding during the year, adjusted for own shares 
held. Diluted earnings per share is determined by adjusting the 
profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, 
adjusted for own shares held and for the effects of all dilutive 
potential ordinary shares. 

 

(b) Headline earnings per share 

Headline earnings per share are calculated as per the rules set 
out in Circular 2/2013 - Headline Earnings. 

 

4.21 Segment reporting 

An operating segment is a component of the Group that 
engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues 
and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that 
relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other 
components. All operating segments’ operating results are 
reviewed regularly by the Group’s CEO to make decisions 
about resources to be allocated to the segment and to assess 
its performance, and for which discrete financial information is 
available. 

 

Segment results that are reported to the CEO include items 
directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be 
allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise 
mainly corporate assets (primarily the Company’s 
headquarters), head office expenses, and income tax assets 
and liabilities. 

 

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during 
the year to acquire property, plant and equipment, and 
intangible assets other than goodwill. 

 

5. Determination of fair values 

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures 
require the determination of fair value, for both financial and 
non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been 
determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes 
based on the following methods. When applicable, further 
information about the assumptions made in determining fair 
values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability. 

 

Business combinations 

Fair values of all identifiable assets and liabilities included in 
the business combination are determined by reference to 
market values of those or similar items, where available, or by 
discounting expected future cash flows using the Group's 
discount rate to present values. 

 

Equity and debt securities 

The fair value of equity and debt securities is determined by 
reference to their quoted closing bid price at the reporting 
date, or if unquoted, determined using a valuation technique. 

Valuation techniques employed include market multiples and 
discounted cash flow analysis using expected future cash flows 
and a market-related discount rate.  

 

Loans and other receivables 

The fair value of loans and other receivables, is estimated at 
the present value of future cash flows, discounted at the 
market rate of interest at the reporting date. This fair value is 
determined for disclosure purposes or when acquired in a 
business combination. 

 

Other liabilities at amortised cost 

Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is 
calculated based on the present value of future principal and 
interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest 
at the reporting date. For finance leases the market rate of 
interest is determined by reference to similar lease 
agreements. 

 

Share-based payments 

Fair value of the options is measured using the Black-Scholes 
option pricing models where applicable. The expected life used 
in the models has been adjusted, based on management’s best 
estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise 
restrictions and behavioural considerations such as volatility, 
dividend yield and the vesting period. The fair value takes into 
account the terms and conditions on which these incentives 
are granted. 

 

6. New standards and interpretations 

6.1 Standards and interpretations in issue not yet effective 

At the date of the authorisation of these financial statements, 
the following standards and interpretations that may be 
expected to impact the Group were in issue but not effective: 

 

IFRS 2: Share-based payment 

Amendment: definitions changed for vesting condition and 
service condition; definition added for performance condition 
and service condition. Effective annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 July 2014 (prospective for transactions with a grant 
date on or after this date). 
 
The impact of these amendments are not material to the 
Group and company financial statements. 

 

IFRS 3: Business Combinations 

Amendment: Contingent consideration shall be treated in 
accordance with the IFRS 9 (IAS 39) requirements where it is a 
financial instrument, or it shall be measured at fair value at 
each reporting date with changes recognised in profit or loss. 
Effective annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 
(prospective for business combinations occurring on or after 
this date).  

 

Amendment: Accounting for the formation of joint 
arrangements in the financial statements of the joint 
arrangement itself is scoped out of IFRS 3. Effective annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 (prospectively).  

 



Advanced Health Limited Integrated Report 2014 41 | P a g e  

 

The impact of these amendments are not material to the 
Group and company financial statements. 

 

IFRS 8: Operating segments 

Amendments: A brief description of the operating segments 
that have been aggregated in accordance with IFRS 8.12 and 
the economic indicators assessed in determining that the 
segments share similar economic characteristics must be 
disclosed where this judgement is applied. A reconciliation of 
reportable segments’ assets to the entity’s is only required if 
the segment assets are reported in accordance with 
paragraph 23. Effective annual periods beginning on or after 1 
July 2014. 

 
The impact of these amendments are not material to the 
Group and company financial statements. 

 

IFRS 9: Financial instruments 

A finalised version of IFRS 9 has been issued which replaces IAS 
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The 
completed standard comprises guidance on Classification and 
Measurement, Impairment Hedge Accounting and 
Derecognition: Effective 1 January 2018. 

 
It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on 
the Group and company financial statements.  

 

IFRS 13: Fair value measurement 

Clarification: The portfolio exemption applies to all contracts 
within the scope of, and accounted for in accordance with IAS 
39 or IFRS 9, regardless of whether they meet the definitions 
per IAS 32. Effective annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 
2014 (prospectively). 

 
The impact of this new standard is not material to the Group 
and company financial statements.  

 

IFRS 15: Revenue from contracts with customers  

New standard that establishes a single, comprehensive and 
robust framework for the recognition, measurement and 
disclosure of revenue. Effective annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2017 (prospectively). 

 
The impact of this new standard is not material to the Group 
and company financial statements.  

 

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle: Amendments to the 
Revaluation method – proportionate restatement of 
accumulated depreciation. Effective annual periods beginning 
on or after 1 July 2014.  

 

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 to clarify the basis for the 
calculation of depreciation and amortisation, as being the 
expected pattern of consumption of the future economic 
benefits of an asset. Effective annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2016.  

 

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41 which defines bearer plants 
and includes bearer plants in the scope of IAS 16 Property, 
plant and Equipment, rather than IAS 41 allowing such assets 
to be accounted for after initial recognition in accordance with 
IAS 16. Effective annual periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2016.  

 
The impact of this new standard is not material to the Group 
and company financial statements.  

 

IAS 19: Employee benefits 

Amendment: Simplification of accounting for contributions by 
employees which are independent of the number of years for 
defined benefit plans. Effective annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 July 2014 (prospectively). 

 

Amendments to Defined Benefit Plans: Employee 
Contributions whereby the requirements in IAS 19 for 
contributions from employees or third parties that are linked 
to service have been amended.  Effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 July 2014. 

 
The impact of this new standard is not material to the Group 
and company financial statements.  

 

IAS 24: Related party disclosures 

The definition of related parties includes the entity, or any 
member of a group of which it is a part, that provides key 
management personnel services to the reporting entity or its 
parent. Effective annual periods beginning on or after 
1 July 2014. 

 

Details of the individual employee benefits do not need to be 
disclosed for an entity that provides key management 
personnel services. Effective annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 July 2014. 

 

The amounts incurred for key management personnel services 
from an entity must be disclosed. Effective annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 July 2014. 

 
The impact of this new standard is not material to the Group 
and company financial statements.  

 

IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 

Amendments to IAS 27 will allow entities to use the equity 
method to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint 
ventures and associates in their separate financial statements.  
Effective annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. 

 
The impact of this new standard is not material to the Group 
and company financial statements.  

 

IAS 37: Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 

Amendment: Contingent consideration of an acquirer in a 
business combination is now scoped out of IAS 37. Effective 
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 (prospective 
for business combinations occurring on or after this date) 
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The impact of this new standard is not material to the Group 
and company financial statements.  

 

IAS 38: Intangible assets 

Amendment: on revaluation the carrying amount of an asset is 
adjusted to that value in one of the following ways: 

(i) The gross carrying amount is adjusted consistently 
with the valuation (e.g. change the total or change 
the carrying amount to that with accumulated 
depreciation adjusted proportionately). 

(ii) The accumulated depreciation is eliminated against 
the gross carrying amount of the asset. Effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 
(applicable to all revaluations recognised in annual 
periods beginning on or after the date of initial 
application and in the immediately preceding annual 
period). 

 

Amendment: includes a rebuttable presumption that an 
amortisation method that is based on revenue is 
inappropriate. Effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2016 (prospectively). 
 
The impact of this new standard is not material to the Group 
and company financial statements.  

 

IAS 39: Financial instruments: recognition and measurement 

Amendment: Contingent consideration of an acquirer in a 
business combination is classified as a financial liability or 

financial asset at fair value through profit or loss. Effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 (prospective 
for business combinations occurring on or after this date). 

 
The impact of this new standard is not material to the Group 
and company financial statements.  

 

IAS 40: Investment property 

Clarification of scope: When exercising judgement to 
determine whether an acquisition of a property is the 
acquisition of an investment property or a business 
combination. The judgement is exercised within the scope of 
IFRS 3 Business Combinations. Effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 July 2014 (prospectively for 
acquisitions of investment property occurring on or after this 
date). 

 

The Group is considering what the impact of these new 
standards on the Group and Company will be. All standards 
and interpretations will be adopted at their effective dates 
(except for those standards and interpretations that are not 
applicable to the entity). 

 
The impact of this new standard is not material to the Group 
and company financial statements.  

 
All standards and interpretations will be adopted at their 
effective dates (except for those standards and interpretations 
that are not applicable to the entity). 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
 

1. Segment report  

 

Geographical information  

The group operates in 2 main geographical areas:  

South Africa - derives revenue from provision of same-day surgical service. 

Australia - derives revenue from provision of same-day surgical service. 

 

In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical location of customers 
and assets are based on the geographical allocation of the assets. 

 

Information regarding the results of each segment is included below. Performance is measured based on segment profit after income 
tax, as included in the internal management reports that are reviewed by the Group’s CEO. Segment profit is used to measure 
performance as management believes that such information is the most relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative 
to other entities that operate within these geographical areas. 

 

Geographical information 

   2014  
R'000  

 2013  
R'000 

 2014  
R'000  

 2013  
R'000  

 2014  
R'000  

 2013  
R'000  

 2014  
R'000  

 2013  
R'000  

 South Africa Australia Corporate and 
Eliminations 

Total 

External revenue    7,259             -  148,532  126,153             -             -  155,791  126,153  

Inter-segmental revenue            -             -  38,320   24,127  (38,320)  (24,127)              -               -  

Total Segment revenue     7,259             -  186,852  150,280  (38,320)  (24,127)  155,791  126,153           

Interest income      1,451              -               -               -               -               -       1,451              -  

Interest expense         198              -       1,904       3,669               -               -       2,102       3,669  

Depreciation      1,642              -       5,807       5,296               -               -       7,449       5,296  

Profit/loss for the year     (833)               -    18,097    13,698    (1,785)               -    15,479    13,698           

Other  information 
        

Capital expenditure      5,693               -       1,586       3,648               -               -      7,279       3,648           

Statement of financial position 
        

         

Assets 
        

Segment Asset 107,815               -  119,257    92,545    20,463               -  247,535    92,545           

Liabilities 
        

Segment Liabilities   14,230              -    44,344    46,779          583              -    59,157    46,779  

 

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment profit represents the 
profit earned by each segment.  

 

In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical location of customers. 
Segment assets are based on the geographical allocation of the assets. 

All assets are allocated to reportable segments. Goodwill, deferred tax and current tax receivable/payable is allocated to group services. 
Assets used jointly by reportable segments are allocated on the basis of the revenues earned by individual reportable segments; and all 
liabilities are allocated to reportable segments. Liabilities for which reportable segments are jointly liable are allocated in proportion to 
segment assets. 

 

The revenue from external parties and all other items of income, expenses, profits and losses reported in the segment report is 
measured in a manner consistent with that in the statement of comprehensive income. 
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       2014  
R'000  

 2013 
R'000  

2. Revenue 
  

Total revenue 
  

Rendering of services      150,728       121,471  

Sale of goods          5,063           4,682   
     155,791       126,153  

3. Other operating expenses 
  

Operating expenses includes the following: 
  

Amortisation of intangibles             329             108  

Depreciation          1,049             348  

Listing fees          1,100                    -  

Legal/Consulting costs          7,547           2,246  

Directors emoluments          6,016           4,768  

- Non-executive directors fees             380              190  

Executive directors     

- Salaries (short term)          3,866           4,530  

- Bonus and performance related payments (short term) 1 497 - 

- Post employment (long term)             163                   -  

- Allowances (short term)             110                47  

Premises          6,227           4,640  

Staff costs excluding directors emoluments        22,603         33,059  

- remuneration (short term)        20,021         30,482  

- provident fund contributions (post-employment benefits) 2 585 2 577    

4. Investment income  
  

Interest received - bank          1,451                   -   
         1,451                  -  

5. Finance costs 
  

Financial liabilities          1,904                   -  

Bank             197           3,669   
        2,101          3,669  

6. Taxation 
  

South African  normal tax 
  

- Current year tax            368                   -  

Foreign normal taxation 
  

 - Current year          6,882           
3,971  

Deferred taxation 
  

 - Temporary differences            601              240   
         7,851          4,211  

Reconciliation of rate of taxation 
  

South African normal tax rate 28% 28% 

Non-deductible expenses 1% 0% 

Differences in taxes for foreign operations 3% 3% 

Assessed losses utilised 2% -7% 

Effective rate 34% 24% 
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7. Earnings per share  

     2014  
R'000  

 2013 
R'000  

Earnings/diluted per share (cents) 6.44 9.83 

Headline/diluted earnings per share (cents) 6.44 9.83 

Net asset value per share (cents) 89.00 50.59 

Net tangible asset per share (cents) 80.30 50.59 

   

7.1 Earnings / Headline earnings   

The earnings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share for the group are as 
follows: 

Earnings used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share 7 740 8 894 

Headline earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders 7 740 8 894 

 

7.2 Reconciliation between earnings and headline earnings 

     Gross  
R'000  

 Tax  
R'000  

 Non-
controlling 

interest 
R'000  

 Net 
R'000  

2014 
     

 Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders     23,330        (7,851)        (7,739)          7,740  

 Headline earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders     23,330        (7,851)        (7,739)          7,740        

2013 
     

 Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders        17,909        (4,211)        (4,804)          8,894  

 Headline earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders        17,909        (4,211)        (4,804)           8,894  

 

     2014   2013  

    Shares'000  Shares'000  

7.3 Weighted average number of shares and diluted weighted average 
  

Weighted average number of shares  
 

     120,272        90,467  

Diluted weighted average number of shares 
 

      120,273        90,467  

Total shares in issue 
 

      211,615         90,467  

   

Reconciliation between the number of share used for earnings per share and diluted earnings per 
share. 

  

Number of shares used for earnings per share       120,272         90,467  

Share options issued as at 30 June 2014 (Refer to note 18)                   1                -  

Number of shares used for diluted earnings per share       120,273         90,467  

 

Weighted average number of shares 

The weighted average number of shares as a result of the reverse acquisition (Refer to Note 10) is calculated as follows: 

 

The number of ordinary shares outstanding from the beginning of that period to the acquisition is deemed to be the number of ordinary 
shares of the legal acquiree (the accounting acquirer) outstanding during the period multiplied by the exchange ratio per the sale 
agreement. This principle is applied for the comparative period as well. 

 

The number of shares outstanding from the acquisition date to the end of the period is the actual number of shares of the legal parent's 
ordinary shares outstanding during the period. 
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8. Property, plant and equipment 

 2014 2013  
Cost Accumulated 

depreciation 
Carrying 
amount 

Cost Accumulated 
depreciation 

Carrying 
amount 

Buildings        19,969                   -         19,969        18,059                   -         18,059  

Medical Equipment       67,177     (31,832)         35,345        48,068      (20,764)         27,304  

Furniture and fittings         1,476            (686)               790                    -                    -                   -  

Motor Vehicles              201            (165)                 36               182            (139)                43  

Office equipment         2,158         (1,525)               633           1,777         (1,109)               668  

Computer equipment           1,656         (1,444)               212           1,248            (981)              267  

Leasehold improvement          4,746         (1,130)           3,616           3,901           (635)           3,266   
      97,383      (36,782)         60,601         73,235      (23,628)         49,607  

 

Reconciliation of the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment 

   

  Opening 
balance 

R'000  

 Additions 
R'000  

 Additions 
through 
business 

acquisitions 
R'000  

 Depreciation 
R'000  

 Effects of 
translations 

 R'000  

 Closing 
balance 

 R'000  

2014       

Buildings        18,059  -         -                  -           1,910         19,969  

Medical Equipment        27,402          3,705           7,923         (6,400)           2,715         35,345  

Furniture and fittings                   -              135               910            (255)                   -              790  

Motor Vehicles               43                   -  -             (11)                   4                36  

Office equipment              668                59                 37            (197)                 66               633  

Computer equipment               268              116                 47            (236)                 17               212  

Leasehold improvement          3,266              227               136            (350)               337           3,616  

 49,706         4,242           9,053        (7,449)           5,049         60,601  

       

2013       

Buildings        16,823                   -  -                   -           1,236         18,059  

Medical Equipment        28,044          2,217  -        (4,948)           2,089         27,402  

Motor Vehicles               52                   -  -             (13)                  4                 43  

Office equipment              484                25  -              125                 34               668  

Computer equipment              417                44  -           (224)                31               268  

Leasehold improvement          1,998          1,362  -           (236)              142           3,266  

       47,818          3,648  -      (5,296)           3,536         49,706  

 

Depreciation expense included in cost of sales R 6 400 245 (2013: R 4 948 378) and in operating expenses is R 1 049 450 (R 348 047).  

 

Details of Building  2014 
R'000  

 2013 
R'000  

Presmed Australia Premises 
  

Lot 6, Strata plan 36362 
  

Purchase price: 1 September 2010           13,280         13,280  

Change in value due to valuation - up to 2014             2,037           2,037  

Effect of translation of foreign operations             4,652           2,706   
          19,969         18,023  

 
A register with details of the land and building is available for inspection by shareholders or their duly authorised representatives at the 
registered office of the Company and its respective subsidiaries. 
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Assets subject to finance lease 

The Group leases Medical equipment under a number of finance leases. At 30 June 2014 the net carrying amount of leased Medical 
equipment that is secured under finance leases is as follows;  

 2014 
R'000  

 2013 
R'000  

Medical equipment 8,769 10,656 

 

The estimation of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment is based on historic performance as well as expectations about 
future use and therefore requires a significant degree of judgement to be applied by management. These depreciation rates represent 
management’s current best estimate of the useful lives of the assets. 

 

 9. Goodwill    2014 

R’000 

    Cost Accumulated 
impairment 

Carrying 
amount 

Goodwill 
 

          10,411                    -            10,411    
          10,411                     -            10,411       

Reconciliation of goodwill 

  

 Opening 
balance 

 R'000  

 Additions 
business 

combinations 
R'000  

 Closing 
balance 

 R'000  

2014 
    

Goodwill 
 

                   -            10,411            10,411    
                   -            10,411            10,411  

 

Goodwill was recognised in the current year, there are no comparative amounts in 2013 financial year. 

 

Goodwill is reviewed annually at each reporting date for impairment, or more frequently when there are indicators that impairment 
may have occurred, by comparing the carrying amount to its recoverable amount. Any impairment losses are included in other 
operating expenses in profit or loss. 

 

Key assumptions used in impairment testing for goodwill impaired in the current period. 

The cash generating capabilities of all Cash Generating Units (CGU's) were determined by discounting the future cash flows generated 
from continuing operations. 

 

The recoverable amount of each operation's goodwill is based on value-in-use calculations. The calculations are based upon discounting 
expected pre-tax cash flows at a risk adjusted interest rate appropriate to the cash generating unit, the determination of both of which 
requires the exercise of judgement. The estimation of pre-tax cash flows is sensitive to the periods for which forecasts are available and 
to assumptions regarding the long-term sustainable cash flows. While forecasts are compared with actual performance and external 
economic data, expected cash flows naturally reflect management's view of future performance. 

 

The cash flow projections were based on the approved budgeted 2015 results, growth for a further five years thereafter and a 
reasonable growth rate is applied thereafter based on current market conditions. In assessing future cash flows, management has 
considered the assumptions relating to the sustainable growth, market opportunities as well as changes to the cost structures based on 
business plans. 

 

The discount rates used in the discounted cash flows models are calculated using the principles of the capital asset pricing model, taking 
into account the current market conditions. 

 

A pre-tax weighted-average cost-of-capital rate that ranges between 21% and 23% per annum was used in discounting the projected 
cash flows. Growth rates applied for the five year period beyond the 2015 budget was 5%. Perpetuity growth rates applied was 4.5%. 
The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the markets in which the entity operates and is consistent with 
the long-term average of the industry.  
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Impairment 

The recoverable amount of the cash generating units were determined to be higher than the carrying amount and therefore no 
impairment charge emanated. 

 

Goodwill allocation 

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the group’s legal subsidiaries which are each considered to be a cash 
generating unit and represent the lowest level within the group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. 
A cash generating unit (CGU) is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the 
cash inflows from other assets or group of assets. 

 

                           Carrying 
value 
R'000  

 2014  
             

The aggregate cost of goodwill allocated to each unit is as follows: 
    

eMalahleni Day Hospital Proprietary Limited 
     

       5,310  

Medgate Day Clinic Proprietary Limited 
     

       5,101               
    10,411  

10. Business combinations 

On 27 January 2014 the Group purchased 100% of eMalahleni Day Hospital (Pty) Ltd and 100% of Medgate Day Clinic (Pty) Ltd by way of 
reverse listing of Advanced Health Limited. The application of International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), in particular IFRS 3 
Business Combinations, results in Presmed Australia (Pty) Ltd (the legal acquiree) being recognised as the acquirer for accounting 
purposes, and in the transaction being accounted for as reverse acquisition. Accordingly, these consolidated annual financial statements 
prepared following the reverse acquisition are issued in the name of Advanced Health Limited (the legal parent and accounting 
acquiree), but are prepared as a continuation of the financial statements of Presmed Australia (Pty) Ltd. (the legal subsidiary and 
accounting acquirer), with one adjustment, which is the retroactive adjustment of Presmed Australia (Pty) Ltd’s legal capital to reflect 
Advanced Limited's legal capital. The comparative financial information presented in these consolidated annual financial statements has 
also been retrospectively adjusted to reflect Advanced Health Limited's legal capital. The acquisitions of eMalahleni Day Hospital (Pty) 
Ltd and Medgate Day Clinic (Pty) Ltd as a result of the reverse listing is addressed further in note 10. 

            
% Held 

 
 2014 
R'000  

eMalahleni Day Hospital 
   

               100  
 

     9,243  

Medgate Day Clinic 
   

               100  
 

   10,622  

 

The following Advanced Health shares have been issued for the acquisition of the above subsidiaries: 

- 9,243,000 shares were issued to the eMalahleni Day Hospital Vendors on 27 January 2014 at R 1.00 per share and 

- 10,621,875 shares were issued to the Medgate Day Clinic Vendors on 27 January 2014 at R 1.00 per share; 

 

The Companies' core business is the provision of medical services. The acquisition is consistent with the Company’s growth strategy and 
to enable the Group to list on the stock exchange.  

 

In the five months to 30 June 2014, eMalahleni Day Hospital (Pty) Ltd contributed revenue of R 3,763,858 and a loss of R 178,089 to the 
Group's results and Medgate Day Clinic (Pty) Ltd contributed revenue of R 3,495,269, and a loss of R 652,188 to the Group's results. If 
the acquisition had occurred on 1 July 2013, Management estimates that Medgate Day Clinic (Pty) Ltd and eMalahleni Day Hospital (Pty) 
Ltd would have contributed R 17,452,780 revenue to the Group. In determining these amounts management have assumed that the fair 
value adjustments, determined provisionally, that arose on acquisition date would have been the same if the acquisition had occurred 
on 1 July 2013. 
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Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed: 
        

                   eMalahleni 
Day Hospital 

(Pty) Ltd  

   Medgate Day 
Clinic (Pty) Ltd  

   Recognised 
values on 

acquisition  

                   R'000     R'000     R'000                

Property, Plant & Equipment 
     

 

 
            3,282  

 
            5,771               9,053  

Inventories 
      

 

 
               362  

 
               338                  699  

Trade & other receivables 
     

 

 
            1,021  

 
            1,519               2,540  

Cash & cash equivalents 
      

 

 
               569  

 
               101                  670  

Borrowings 
      

 

 
              (21)  

 
          (4,365)             (4,386)  

Trade and other payables 
       

             (494)  
 

             (549)             (1,043)  

Deferred tax 
      

 

 
             (585)                1,045                   460  

Net identifiable assets and liabilities 
   

              4,134               3,860               7,993  

Intangible assets identified 
     

  

 

 

 

             7,907  

Deferred taxation on intangible assets  
   

  

 

 

 

           (2,214)  

Goodwill on acquisition 
            

          10,411  

Non-controlling interest 
            

          (2,233)  

Total consideration 
            

          21,865  

Consideration settled in shares 
          

          21,865  

Cash acquired 
            

               670  

Net cash inflow 
            

               670  

 

The net consideration transferred of R 21,864,919 has been determined based on the number of shares Presmed Australia (Pty) Ltd 
would have had to issue in order to give the owners of Advanced Health Limited the same percentage equity interest in the combined 
entity that results from the reverse acquisition. The value (determined using a discounted cash flow model based on estimated future 
cash flow) of each business subject to this transaction was determined by an independent valuer appointed by management, and the 
values contained in his report were used for the purposes of these pro formas without adjustment. These values were used to 
determine the fair value per share for the shares exchanged in the reverse acquisition and ultimately to calculate the purchase 
consideration transferred to acquire eMalahleni Day Clinic (Pty) Ltd and Medgate Day Clinic (Pty) Ltd.  

 

Based on the assessment, intangible assets relating to the customer base and specific service level contracts were identified. 

 

The acquired assets and assumed liabilities have been valued at their estimated fair values at the acquisition date.  

 

The Goodwill is mainly attributable to the skills and technical talent of Medgate Day Clinic (Pty) Ltd and eMalahleni Day Hospital (Pty) 
Ltd work force, and the synergies expected to be achieved from integrating Medgate Day Clinic (Pty) Ltd and eMalahleni Day Hospital 
(Pty) Ltd into the Groups existing business. 

 

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables estimate their fair value, there are no contractual accounts receivable acquired.  

 

11. Intangible assets   
2014   

 Cost 
R'000  

Accumulated 
amortisation 

R'000  

 Carrying 
amount  

R'000  

Customer relations 
 

          4,073             (170)            3,903  

Licensing rights 
 

          4,249             (160)            4,089    
          8,322             (329)            7,992       
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Reconciliation of Intangible assets 

   Additions 
 R'000  

 Additions 
business 

combinatio
ns R'000  

 Amortisation 
R'000  

 Closing 
balance 

 R'000  

Customer relations                    -            4,073             (170)            3,903  

Licensing rights               415            3,834             (160)            4,089   
             415            7,907             (329)            7,992  

 

12. Deferred taxation   
     2014  

R'000  
2013 

R'000  

Represented by: 

Accelerated allowances 

 
      

(1,237)  

     

    (421)  

Revaluation gains 
 

         (873)           (873)  

Provision for employee benefits 
 

        1,425          1,849  

Intangible assets 
 

     (2,119)                   -  

Operating lease accrual 
 

              39                29  

Provision for bad debts 
 

           171                   -  

Assessed losses 
 

        1,638             814  
  

         (955)          1,399  

Represented by: 
   

Deferred tax asset 
 

        3,533          2,693  

Deferred tax liability 
 

    (4,488)      (1,294)    
         (955)          1,399      

At beginning of the year 
 

     (1,399)       (1,756)  

Acquisitions 
 

       1,753                   -  

Effect of exchange rate movements 
 

           259             117  

Deferred taxation temporary differences (note 6) 
 

         (601)           (240)  

 

The Group considers it probable that sufficient taxable income will be available in the future to realise the deferred tax asset raised 
based on future income to be generated. The sufficiency of future taxable income was supported by budgets for the 2015 financial year 
as well as the historical trading results of the various subsidiaries within the Group as well as the historical trading results of the 
company. 

 

13. Other financial assets 

Current       

Loans receivable 
    

3,318   -  

 

Loans and receivables consist of a number of smaller loans to third parties, these are unsecured, no interest is charged and has no fixed 
terms of repayments, the payment is expected to be received within one year.  

 

Fair values of financial assets 

The above financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The directors consider that the 
carrying amounts of financial assets recorded at amortised cost in the financial statements approximate their fair values as the 
difference in carrying amount and fair value is insignificant.  

 
  



Advanced Health Limited Integrated Report 2014 51 | P a g e  

 

14. Inventories 

       2014  
R'000  

2013 
R'000  

Merchandise 
    

          3,820  2,689 

 

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the period was R 68,192,475 (2013: R 42,485,684). 

 

No inventories were recognised as an expense with respect of provision for write-downs of inventory to net realisable value. 

 

15. Trade and other receivables 

Financial instruments 
      

Trade receivables 
    

       11,447         7,441  

Deposits 
    

              30                 -  

Other receivables 
    

          1,093            648  

Allowance for impairment 
    

         (611)            (47)       
      11,959         8,042  

Non - financial instruments 
      

Prepayments 
    

             301                 -  

Goods and Services Tax (GST) 
    

          1,033            558  

Value Added Tax (VAT) 
    

             683                 -       
          2,017            558  

Trade and other receivables 
    

      13,976         8,600         

Currencies 
      

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables are denominated in the following 
currencies: 

   

Rand 
    

          3,938                 -  

Australian Dollar 
    

      10,038         8,291       
      13,976         8,291  

Fair value of trade and other receivables 

The directors estimate the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximate their fair value.  

 

The average collection period is 30 days. Trade receivables disclosed above are classified as loans and receivables and are therefore 
measured at amortised cost. Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts (see below for aged analysis) that are past due at the 
end of the reporting period, but against which the group has not recognised an allowance for doubtful receivables because there has 
not been a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable. 

 

Trade and other receivables at fair value 

The allowance for impairment is based on past experience and the prevailing trading conditions relating to specific reportable segments 

and individual debtors, where risk of non-payment is perceived to be high and where outstanding balances are dated. 

Trade and other receivables 
    

11,959 8,042 

 

Exposure to credit risk 

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables represents the maximum credit exposure. 

 

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables at the reporting date by geographic region was: 

South Africa 
    

3,938                -  

Australia     10,038 8,291 

     13,976 8,291 
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Credit Quality 

The following represents information on the credit quality of trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired:      
     2014  

R'000 
2013 

R'000  

A 
    

90% 90% 

B     10% 10% 

 

A - The debtors are of good credit quality and no default in payment is expected. 

B - These debtors usually pay, but have previously paid late and therefore there is a possibility that these debtors will not be 
recoverable. 

Please refer to note 28 for detailed information regarding the credit risk of trade and other receivables. 

 

Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired 

Trade and other receivables amounting to R 836,000 (2013: R 1,024,000) which are less than 3 months past due are not considered to 
be impaired. For the ageing of amounts past due is as follows: 

1 month past due 
    

836 941 

2 months past due     - 63 

3 months past due     - 20 

 

Trade and other receivables impaired 

Trade and other receivables of R 611,241 (2013: R 47,455) were impaired and allowed for. The ageing of these balances is as follows: 

Over 6 months  

    
611 47 

Reconciliation of allowance for impairment of trade and other receivables 

Opening balance 
    

47 - 

Provision for impairment     559 47 

Effect of change rate movements     5 - 

     611 47 

The allowance for impairment is based on past experience and the prevailing trading conditions relating to specific reportable segments 
and individual debtors, where risk of non-payment is perceived to be high and where outstanding balances are dated. 

 

16. Cash and cash equivalents 

Bank and cash balances     143,883 28,956 

 

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents represents the maximum credit exposure. Indemnity guarantee from Zealand Banking 
Group Limited in Australia amounted to R 1,339,168 as at 30 June 2014, of which a corresponding cash balance is held. In the director's 
assessment the carrying amount approximate the fair value. 

 

17. Stated capital 

Authorised 

Advanced Health Limited – 1,000,000,000 Ordinary shares 

 

Issued 

The Issued stated capital of Advance Health Limited is R 211,614,801 (2013: 3) being the legal entity listed on the JSE.  

 

Reconciliation of number of shares issued ('000) 
      

Shares issued for acquisition of subsidiaries     110,331 - 

Specific issue of shares     20,000 - 

General issue of shares     81,284 - 

     211,615 - 

The unissued shares are under the control of the directors until the forthcoming annual general meeting. 

 

 

 

Reconciliation of stated capital  
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 Stated 
capital 

'000  

 Equity 
Reserve* 

'000  

 Total Issued 
capital 

'000  
      

Balance as at 1 July 2013 
  

             467                   -               467  

Shares issued for acquisition of subsidiaries 
  

      110,331        (88,467)          21,864  

Capital raising fees 
  

        (3,237)                   -          (3,237)  

Specific issue of shares 
  

        20,000                   -          20,000  

General issue of shares 
  

        81,284                   -          81,284  

Balance as at 30 June 2014 
  

      208,845        (88,467)        120,378  

 

Specific share issues: 

The company issued 20,000,000 shares to the following shareholders at R1 per share. 

 

Name of shareholder    Number of shares  
'000  

Bradley  Norman Elliot  
 

          1,000  

Bremer Investments (Pty) Ltd 
 

          5,000  

CJPG van ZYL 
 

             300  

Deborah Patricia Viljoen 
 

          1,000  

Jamie Teagan Hansen (Minor) 
 

             750  

Joanne Elliot 
 

          1,000  

Lene Trust 
 

              50  

Leon Abraham Viljoen 
 

              50  

PA &LR Laubscher Gesinstrust 
 

              50  

Presmedical Witbank (Pty) Ltd 
 

          8,250  

Sandra Comfort 
 

          1,000  

Solly Hyman Family Holdings (Pty) Ltd 
 

          1,250  

The Frans and Louise van Hoogstraten Family Trust 
 

              50  

The Savadier Family Trust 
 

             250  

Total specific shares issued 
 

       20,000  

 
* The equity reserve arose as a result of accounting for the reverse acquisition in terms of IFRS 3 Business Combination. This standard requires the share 
capital disclosed to be that of the legal parent or accounting subsidiary (being Advanced Health Limited) whilst the net issued capital has to be that of the 
accounting acquirer or legal subsidiary (Presmed Australia) as adjusted for the number of equity instruments it would have had to issue to acquire the 
various accounting subsidiaries as determined when calculating the purchase consideration for the acquisition, and shares issued subsequent to the 
acquisition transactions.  

 

18. Share based payments 

During the year the following share-based payment expense was recognised in profit or loss regarding share-based payment 
arrangements that existed: 

 

Equity settled  

    
     2014  

R'000 
2013 

R'000  

Share based payment expense (Share option 2) 
    

3 - 

 

Share option scheme 1 

MC Resnik through his investment company Kinser Investments, was granted an option to subscribe for 76,672 Presmed shares (being 
10% of authorised share capital in Presmed Australia) at a subscription price of AU $8.00 per Presmed share, exercisable for a period of 
10 years commencing 26 June 2012. 

 

 

 

 

Share option scheme 2 
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As at 30 June 2014, In lieu of remuneration, for a period of three years from the date of publication of the results for the end of each 
financial year of the Company, CA Grillenberger, CJPG van Zyl and PJ Jaffe were granted an option to purchase Advanced Health Limited 
ordinary shares over a three year period commencing from 30 June 2014, which option must be exercised after three years from the 
option being granted, within a further three year period. The exercise price payable per share for the option shares shall equal the 
amount of the weighted average price per share per annum of the Company‘s shares as traded on the JSE during the financial year 
ended June each year for which the Option is granted. The purchase consideration will be payable on exercise of the Option or any part 
thereof. 

 

   Share option 
scheme 1  

 Share option 
scheme 2   

Grant date 26 June 2012 30 June 2014 

Expiry date 26 June 2022 30 June 2017 

Number of share options granted 
  

- MC Resnik           76,672                     -  

- CA Grillenberger                    -       2,000,000  

- CJPG Van Zyl                    -       1,500,000  

- PJ Jaffe                    -          100,000  

Options vesting period  10 years   3 years  

Vesting condition  None   In service  

Fair value at grant date   Aus $1.5   R 0.78  

Average remaining contractual life (years)  None   3 years  

 

Details of outstanding options for the year are as follows:   
2014 2013 

     Number of 
options  

 Weighted 
average 

exercise price 
Aus $  

 Number of 
options  

 Weighted 
average 

exercise price 
Aus$  

Share option 1 
     

Outstanding at beginning of the year        76,672                   8         76,672                    8  

Outstanding at end of year        76,672                   8         76,672                    8  

Exercisable at end of year        76,672                    -         76,672                   -  

 

  

   

 Number of 
options  

 

 Weighted 
average 

exercise price 
Rand   

 

 Number of 
options  

 

 Weighted 
average 

exercise price 
Rand 

Share option 2 
     

Outstanding at beginning of the year                   -                    -                   -                    -  

Granted  
 

  3,600,000                    2                    -                    -  

Forfeited 
 

                  -                    -                    -                    -  

Exercised 
 

                  -                    -                    -                    -  

Outstanding at end of year   3,600,000                    2                    -                    -  

Exercisable at end of year 
 

  3,600,000                   2                    -                    -  

 

The share-based payment expense was calculated using an option pricing model reflective of the underlying characteristics of each part 
of the transaction. It is calculated using the following assumptions at grant date. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                    Share option 2 
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Valuation model: Blackscholes option pricing model 
        

Weighted average share price (rands) 
        

                -  

Spot price (rands) 
         

 R 2.3  

Strike price (rands) 
         

 R 2  

Option price 
         

         0.78  

Risk-free interest rate  
         

8.09% 

Expected volatility  
         

20% 

Expected dividend yield 
         

0% 

Vesting period 
         

               3  

 

The risk-free rate for periods within the contractual term of the share rights was based on the South African long-term government 
bond rate in effect at the time of the grant. 

 

The expected volatility in the value of the share rights granted was determined using the industry norms.  

A dividend yield of 0.0% was determined as no dividends were forecasted for the foreseeable future at grant date. 

 

The valuation of the share-based payment expense requires a significant degree of judgement to be applied by management. 

 

19. Other financial liabilities 
    

     2014  
R'000 

2013 
R'000  

Non-Current 
      

Eenhede Konsultante (Pty) Ltd     12,867 13,895 

Maluti Holding Aktengesellschaft (Lichtenstein)     1,645 1,506 

     14,512 15,401 

Current       

Eenhede Konsultante (Pty) Ltd     7,456 3,860 

Maluti Holding Aktengesellschaft (Lichtenstein)     396 281 

     7,852 4,141 

     22,364 19,542 

Eenhede Konsultante (Pty) Ltd 

The loan is unsecured and bears interest at 5.5% per annum.  There are no fixed terms of repayment, the short term portions is payable 
on demand and the long term is not payable before 1 July 2015. The current portion represents the amount expected to be settled 
within 12 months.  

 

Maluti Holding Aktengesellschaft (Lichtenstein) 

The loan is unsecured and bears interest at 5.5% per annum.  There are no fixed terms of repayment, the short term portions is payable 
on demand and the long term is not payable before 1 July 2015. The current portion represents the amount expected to be settled 
within 12 months.  

 

Fair values of financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The directors consider that the carrying 
amounts of financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the financial statements approximate their fair values, the difference 
between fair value and carrying amount is insignificant.  

 

20. Finance lease obligations 

Total finance lease outstanding 
    

11,767 17,081 

Less: Amount included in current liabilities     7,796 6,804 

Long-term portion outstanding     3,971 10,277 

 

 

 

 

 

Reconciliation between the total minimum lease payments and their present value 
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2014 

 Up to 1 
year  

 2  to 5 
years  

 More  than 
5 years  

 Total  

Minimum lease payments            8,066             4,002                     -          12,068  

Finance cost            (270)              (31)                     -             (301)  

Present value           7,796            3,971                     -          11,767       

2013 
    

Minimum lease payments           8,592          10,310                     -          18,902  

Finance cost         (1,788)               (33)                     -          (1,821)  

Present value           6,804          10,277                     -          17,081  

 

It is Group policy to lease certain medical equipment under finance leases.  

 

The finance lease agreements are in repayable in 60 monthly instalments and bear interest at prime plus 1% to prime plus 4.5%.  

 

The Group's obligations under the finance arrangement are secured by the lessors charge over the financed fixed assets as disclosed in 
note 8.  

 

21. Trade and other payables 
    

     2014  
R'000 

2013 
R'000  

Financial instruments 
      

Trade payables     7,531 3,464 

Other payables     1,282 585 

     8,813 4,048 

Non-financial instruments        

Bonus     1,121 - 

Leave pay     85 - 

Goods and Services Tax (GST)     453 347 

VAT     137 - 

Other accruals     2,931 882 

     4,727 1,229 

     13,540 5,278 

Currencies       

The carrying amount of trade and other payables are denominated in the following 
currencies: 

   

Rand     1,780 - 

Australian Dollar     11,760 5,278 

     13,540 5,278 

Fair value of trade and other payables 

The average credit period on purchases of goods and services is 60 days. No interest is charged on the trade payables for the first 60 
days from the date of the invoice. Thereafter, interest is charged at an average 2% per annum on the outstanding balance. 

 

Due to the short-term nature of the group's trade and other payables, the carrying value approximates their fair value. Trade payables 
are subject to normal industry settlement terms. 
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22. Provisions 

  

 Opening 
balance 

R'000  

 Additions during 
the year 

R'000  

 Effect of 
translation of 

foreign 
operations 

R'000  
 Total 
R'000  

 Reconciliation of provisions  - 2014  
    

 Employee provisions              2,193                551                132       2,876      

 
 Reconciliations of provision  - 2013  

   

 
 Employee provisions              1,581                468                144       2,193  

          
     2014  

R'000 
2013 

R'000  

Current     1,612 924 

Non-Current     1,264 1,269 

     2,876 2,193 

 

Provision for employee benefits represents amounts provided for long service in Australia. The non-current portion for this provision 
includes amounts accrued for long service leave entitlements that have not yet vested in relation to those employees who have not yet 
completed the required period of service. The current portion for this provision includes the total amount accrued for annual leave 
entitlements that have vested due to employees having completed the required period of service. 

 

23. Commitments 

Operating leases - lessee 

The following operating lease charges are payable on equipment and premises: 

 

- Due within one year     4,991 3,264 

- Due within one to five years     20,163 10,216 

- Due after five years     4,122 - 

     29,276 13,480 

 

Operating lease payments by the Group represent rentals payable by the subsidiaries for certain of its office properties and equipment. 
All leases are negotiated for an average term of five years and rentals are fixed for an average of three years. No contingent rent is 
payable. 

 

 

 24. Summarised financial information of Subsidiaries with material Non-Controlling Interests (NCI) 

  

   Australia 
Subsidiary  

2014 
        

NCI percentage 
       

39% 

Principle place of business 
       

 Australia  

         

Summarised financial information                R'000  

Total assets 
       

         81,274  

Total liabilities 
       

         28,120  

Net assets 
       

         53,154  

Carrying amount of NCI interests 
       

         12,642           

         

Profit after tax 
       

         26,444  

Profit allocated to NCI 
       

           7,152  

Dividends  
       

        (2,166)  

Contribution to net cash flow movement for the year 
     

         11,074  
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2013 
        

NCI percentage 
       

38%          

Summarised financial information                R'000  

Total assets 
       

         45,383  

Total liabilities 
       

         25,492  

Net assets 
       

         19,891  

Carrying amount of NCI interests 
       

4,774          

Profit after tax 
       

        15,800  

Profit allocated to NCI 
       

           4,804  

Dividends paid 
       

        (1,631)  

Contribution to net cash flow movement for the year 
     

                   -  

 

Summary of changes of ownership in a subsidiary 

During the year a subsidiary in Presmed issued additional share capital, this resulted in an increase in NCI portion. 

The effect on the controlling interest's equity is as follows:     
2014 

R'000 
% control 

Share capital opening balance 
   

   12,106  100% 

New issue 
   

     2,845  100% 

Share capital closing balance 
   

   14,951  100%       

Parent company portion 
     

Share capital opening balance 
   

     6,726  56% 

New issue 
   

     1,264  44% 

Share capital closing balance 
   

     7,990  53%       

NCI portion 
     

Share capital opening balance 
   

          5,380  44% 

New issue 
   

          1,581  56% 

Share capital closing balance  
   

          6,961  47% 

 

25. Cash generated by operations 
    

     2014  
R'000 

2013 
R'000  

Profit before taxation      23,330 17,909 

Adjustments for non-cash items:     

  - Depreciation     7,449 5,296 

  - Amortisation      329 - 

  - Finance costs      2,101 3,669 

- Investment income      (1,451) - 

- Movement in operating lease accruals      36 9 

- Movement in provisions      683 - 

- Share based payment expense      3 - 

- Non cash interest adjustment      - 816 

     32,480 27,699 

Changes in working capital        

  - Inventories      76 (727) 

  - Trade and other receivables      (2,526) 1,508 

  - Trade and other payables      8,816 794 

     6,366 1,575 

     38,846 29,274 
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26. Tax paid 

    2014 

R’000 

2013 

R’000 

Balance at beginning of year 
   

          1,682            586  

Taxation charge as per statement of comprehensive income           7,851         4,211  

Deferred taxation 
   

          (600)         (240)  

Balance at the end of the year 
   

       (4,023)      (1,682)  

Effect of translation of foreign operations                37            216      
          4,947         3,091  

27. Related parties 

Relationships 

Subsidiaries     Refer to note 37 

 

Key senior management 

The directors are defined as key senior management. Details of the directors' emoluments, shareholding and share options are 
disclosed in note 30-32. 

 

Transactions with key senior management 

Eenhede Konsultante (Pty) Ltd: 

CA Grillenberger is a director of the above company that had a loan amounting to R 20,323,500 as at 30 June 2014 (2013: R 17,755,452).  
Interest amounting to R 739,588 (2013: R 816,329) was paid to the company during the year.  

 

28. Financial instruments 

               Loans and 
receivables  

R'000  

 Financial liabilities 
at amortised cost 

R'000  

 Total 
R'000  

2014 
         

Financial assets 
         

Cash and cash equivalents 
 

       143,883                     -         143,883  

Trade and other receivables 
 

          11,959                     -            11,959  

Other financial assets 
 

            3,318                     -              3,318  

Total financial assets 
  

 
 

       159,160                     -         159,160            

Financial liabilities 
         

Trade and other payables 
 

                   -              8,813              8,813  

Other financial liabilities 
 

                   -            22,364            22,364  

Finance lease obligation 
 

                   -            11,767            11,767  

Total financial liabilities 
 

                   -            42,944            42,944            

2013 
         

Financial assets 
         

Cash and cash equivalents 
 

          28,956                     -            28,956  

Trade and other receivables 
 

            8,042                     -              8,042  

Total financial assets 
 

          36,998                     -            36,998            

               Loans and 
receivables  

R'000  

 Financial liabilities 
at amortised cost 

R'000  

 Total 
R'000  

Financial liabilities 
         

Trade and other payables 
 

                   -              4,048              4,048  

Other financial liabilities 
 

                   -            19,542            19,542  

Finance lease obligation 
 

                   -            17,081            17,081  

Total financial liabilities 
 

                   -            40,671            40,671  
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29. Financial risk management 

Introduction and overview 

The group is exposed to a variety of financial risks from its use of financial assets and liabilities: 

- Credit risk 

- Liquidity risk 

- Market risk 

    - Interest rate risk 

    - Foreign exchange risk 

    - Capital risk management 

 

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for 
measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these 
consolidated financial statements. 

 

Risk management framework 

The Board of Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management framework. The 
Board has established the Audit and Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Group’s risk 
management policies. The committee reports regularly to the Board of Directors on its activities. 

 

The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits 
and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect 
changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The Group, through its training and management standards and procedures, 
aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations. 

 

The Group Audit and Risk Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s risk management policies and 
procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group.  

 

There have been no changes to the objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk and methods used to manage the risk from 
prior year. 

 

Credit risk  

Credit risk arises mainly from cash deposits, cash equivalents, loans and receivables and trade debtors. The Group deposits the surplus 
cash with major banks with high-quality credit standing and maintains an appropriate spread of cash deposits between various financial 
institutions to limit the exposure to any one counterparty.  

 

Trade and other receivables 

Trade receivables comprise a widespread customer base. Management evaluates credit risk relating to customers on an ongoing basis. 
If customers are independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating, the Group assesses the credit 
quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set for 
patients without medical aid insurance. Services to customers without medical aid insurance are settled in cash or using credit cards on 
discharge date as far as possible. Credit guarantee insurance is not purchased.  

 

Management does not expect any significant loss from non-performance by counterparties on credit granted during the financial year 
under review that has not been provided for.  

 

The Board has delegated the responsibility of managing the credit risk to the managing executives of each subsidiary, who are 
responsible for:  

- Establishing the authorisation structure for the approval and renewal of credit facilities; 

- Reviewing and assessing credit risk; 

- Monitoring the financial position of customers on an on-going basis; and 

- Formulating credit policies in relation to the subsidiary's business and customer base. 

 

Cash and cash equivalents 

The Group held cash and cash equivalents of R 143,883,000 at 30 June 2014 (2013: R 28,956,000), which represents its maximum credit 
exposure on these assets. 
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Past due but not impaired financial assets 

Trade and other receivables and other financial assets that are past due but where management believes that an impairment is not 
necessary, is based on customer history and the stage of collection of amounts owed to the group. 

 

Allowance for impairment 

The group establishes an allowance for impairment losses that represent an estimated loss on specific exposures in respect of each 
account and class of transaction. 

 

Impairment 

Impairments are made to trade receivables, loans and other financial assets when the group believes that the amounts are unlikely to 
be collected. 

                         2014  
R'000  

 2013 
R'000  

Trade and other receivables 
  

          11,959          8,042  

Cash and cash equivalents 
  

       143,883        28,956  

Other financial assets 
  

            3,318                   -            
       159,160        36,998  

Liquidity risk  

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are 
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it 
will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring 
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation. 

 

Typically the Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses for a period of 60 days, 
including the servicing of financial obligations; this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be 
predicted, such as natural disasters.  

 

An analysis of the group's financial assets and liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting 
date to contractual maturity date are as follows based on undiscounted cash flows: 

 

2014  
     

 <1 year   1 year - 5 
years  

 > 5 years   Total  

      
 R'000   R'000   R'000   R'000  

Financial assets 
         

Cash and cash equivalents      143,883                   -                   -       143,883  

Trade and other receivables        11,959                    -                    -         11,959  

Other financial assets          3,318                    -                    -           3,318  

Total financial assets      159,160                    -                    -       159,160  

 

  

         

  

     
 <1 year   1 year - 5 

years  
 > 5 years   Total  

       R'000   R'000   R'000   R'000  

Financial liabilities          

Trade and other payables          8,813                    -                   -           8,813  

Other financial liabilities          8,448         15,163                    -         23,611  

Finance lease obligation          8,066           4,002                    -         12,068  

Total financial liabilities        25,326         19,165                    -         44,492  

Net liquidity gap      133,833      (19,165)                    -       114,668            

 

 

 

2013 
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Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents        28,956                    -                    -         28,956  

Trade and other receivables          8,042                    -                    -           8,042  

Total financial assets        36,998                    -                    -         36,998            

Financial liabilities 
    

Trade and other payables          4,048                    -                    -           4,048  

Other financial liabilities          4,793         16,053                  -         20,845  

Finance lease obligation 
  

         8,592         10,310                   -         18,902  

Total financial liabilities        17,432         26,363                   -         43,795  

Net liquidity gap        19,566      (26,363)                   -        (6,797)  

 

Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and credit spreads will affect the 
group's income or the value if its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control 
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on risk. 

 

Interest rate risk 

The group's cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate owing to changes in 
the market interest rates. The fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in the market interest rates. The group assumes exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market 
interest rates on both fair value and cash flow risks. The analysis below summarises the exposure to interest rate risk. Financial assets 
and liabilities are categorised by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity dates. 

 

  

 

2014 

         <1 year 
R'000  

 1 year - 5 
years 
R'000  

 > 5 years 
R'000  

 Non- 
Interest 
bearing 

R'000  

 Total 
R'000  

 Financial assets  
      

 Cash and cash equivalents  
 

     143,883                   -                   -                   -       143,883  

 Trade and other receivables  
 

       11,959                    -                    -                    -         11,959  

 Other financial assets  
 

         3,318                    -                    -                    -           3,318  

 Total financial assets  
 

     159,160                    -                    -                    -       159,160            

 Financial liabilities  
         

 Trade and other payables  
 

         8,813                    -                    -                    -           8,813  

 Other financial liabilities  
 

        8,448         15,163                    -                    -         23,611  

 Finance lease obligation  
 

         8,066           4,002                    -                    -         12,068  

 Total financial liabilities  
 

       25,326         19,165                    -                    -         44,492  

 Net liquidity rate gap   
 

     133,833      (19,165)                    -                    -       114,668  
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2013 

         <1 year 
R'000  

 1 year - 5 
years 
R'000  

 > 5 years 
R'000  

 Non- 
Interest 
bearing 

R'000  

 Total 
R'000  

Financial assets 
      

Cash and cash equivalents 
 

       28,956                    -                    -                    -         28,956  

Trade and other receivables 
 

         8,042                    -                    -                    -           8,042  

Total financial assets 
 

       36,998                    -                    -                    -         36,998            

Financial liabilities 
         

Trade and other payables 
 

        4,048  
   

         4,048  

Other financial liabilities 
 

         4,793  
   

         4,793  

Finance lease obligation 
 

         8,592         10,310  
  

       18,902  

Total financial liabilities 
 

       17,432         10,310                    -                    -         27,743  

 Net liquidity rate gap   
 

       19,566      (10,310)                    -                    -           9,255  

 

Interest rate sensitivity analysis 

As at 30 June 2014, if the interest rate on variable rate assets and liabilities held at amortised cost and assets and liabilities accounted 
for at fair value had increased or decreased by 200 basis points with all other variables held constant, the impact in profit and loss 
would have been as set out in the table below:  

2014 

R’000 

2013 

R’000  
 Pre-tax   Post-tax   Pre-tax   Post-tax  

Increase          2,379           1,713             (66)             (48)  

Decrease          2,379           1,713             (66)              (48)  

 

Foreign exchange risk 

The group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with 
respect to the Australian Dollar. Foreign exchange risk arises from commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net 
investments in foreign operations. 

 

The group has set up policies that require group companies to manage their foreign exchange risk against their functional currency. The 
group companies are required to use derivative financial instruments for their foreign exchange risk exposure with financial institutions. 
To manage their foreign exchange risk arising from commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities, entities in the 
company use forward contracts, transacted with financial institutions. Foreign exchange risk arises when commercial transactions or 
recognised assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s functional currency. 

 

The Group has certain investments in foreign operations, whose net assets are exposed to foreign currency translation risk. This will 
have no effect on the post-tax profit as the effect of the translation is recognised directly in the foreign currency translation reserve. 
The impact analysis if the exchange rate changes by 10% is as follows: 

        
 Pre-tax   Post-tax   Pre-tax   Post-tax  

Weakened 
   

          5,948            4,283              328              236  

Strengthened 
   

          5,948            4,283              328               236  
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Summary of group's foreign currency exposure on its financial assets and liabilities in Rands is as follows: 

                       2014  
R'000  

 2013 
R'000  

Financial assets 
      

Cash and cash equivalents  
     

Australian Dollar 
   

          50,556         28,956  

Trade and other receivables 
     

Australian Dollar 
   

          10,247            8,042           
    

Total financial assets 
     

          60,803         36,998  

Financial liabilities 
       

Trade and other payables 
     

  

Australian Dollar 
     

10,676 4,048 

Other financial liabilities 
       

Australian Dollar 
     

          19,539         19,542  

Finance lease obligation 
       

Australian Dollar 
     

          11,767         16,685  

Total financial liabilities 
     

          31,306         36,227  

 

Exchange rates used for conversion of foreign items to Rands were:        
Closing Average 

Currency 
      

2014 2013 2014 2013 

Australian Dollar (AUS) 
   

9.9844 9.0118 9.5257 9.0605 

 

Capital risk 

The group's objective when managing capital is to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to 
provide returns for shareholders, benefits for others stakeholders and to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing 
products and services adequately with a moderate level of risk. 

 

The group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light 
of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital 
structure, the group may issue dividends to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt. 

 

The group monitors capital on the basis of total debt to total equity ratio. 

 Total debt  
    

         34,131          36,227  

 Total equity  
    

       188,336           45,766  

 Debt to equity ratio   
  

18% 79% 

 

The decrease in the debt to equity ratio is as a result of the issue of share capital in current year. There were no changes in the Group’s 
approach to capital management during the year. 

 
  



Advanced Health Limited Integrated Report 2014 65 | P a g e  

 

30. Director emoluments 

The director’s emoluments of Advanced Health Limited for the year are set out below:  
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 Director      R'000   R'000   R'000   R'000   R'000   R'000  

2014 
        

Non-executive 
        

PJ Jaffe 
  

              205                     -                     -                   -                     -                205  

WT Mthembu  
  

                60                     -                     -                   -                     -                  60  

AF van Hoogstraten                  90                     -                     -                   -                     -                  90  

YJ Visser  
  

                25                     -                     -                   -                     -                  25  

Executive 
        

MC Resnik  
  

                   -            3,866              1,497              110                163            5,636     
              380            3,866              1,497              110                163            6,016  

 2013  
        

Executive 
        

MC Resnik  
  

                   -            4,530                     -                47  
 

          4,578     
                   -            4,530                     -                47                     -            4,578  

 

Allowances include medical aid, entertainment and travel. 

 

In addition PJ Jaffe is entitled to remuneration of AUS $ 2,285 per holding company board and audit and risk committee meetings 
attended and AUS $ 450 per hour for additional work undertaken for the company.  

 

AF van Hoogstraten is entitled to an additional remuneration at a rate of R 7,500 per meeting attended in addition to the monthly 
retainer of R 10,000 per month 

 

WT Mthembu is entitled to an additional remuneration at a rate of R 5,000 per meeting attended, in addition to the annual retainer of 
R 80,000.  

 

YJ Visser entitled to an additional remuneration at a rate of R 2,500 per meeting attended, in addition to the annual retainer of 
R 40,000. 

 

CA Grillenberger and CJPG van Zyl in lieu of remuneration, they have been awarded share options as described in note 32. 

 

MC Resnik is entitled to 10% of the pre-tax profit earned by Presmed Australia calculated in terms of a predetermined formula.  
 

31. Director shareholding 

 

 

Director 

          Direct 
beneficial 

'000 

Indirect 
beneficial 

'000 

Total 
 

'000 

% 

As at 30 June 2014 
      

AF van Hoogstraten 
  

                  -                 50                 50  0.02% 

CA Grillenberger 
     

                  -       105,161       105,161  49.89% 

MC Resnik 
     

                  -              250               250  0.12% 

CJPG van Zyl 
     

             500               200               700  0.33%       
             500  105,661 106,161 50.36% 
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32. Share options 

Name       Strike price    Grant date   Period 
granted  

 Number of 
shares '000  

 Exercised   Net gains on 
options 

exercised 
R'000  

Director scheme issued on 30 June 2014 in Rands    

CA Grillenberger 
  

 R2   30/06/14   3 years            2,000                    -                    -  

CJPG van Zyl  
  

 R2   30/06/14   3 years            1,500                    -                    -  

PJ Jaffe 
  

 R2   30/06/14   3 years              100                    -                    -        
          3,600  -  - 

Scheme issued on 26 June 2012 in Aus    

MC Resnik 
  

 AUS $8   26/06/12   10 years        76,672                    -                    -     
       76,672                    -                    -  

Refer to note 18 for more details. 

 

33. Subsequent events 

Subsequent to year-end, the Group has entered into a number of acquisitions. 

 

Transfer of shares in a private company acquiring five companies from International Healthcare Consultants Trust (IHCT) & Private 
Preview Investments 27 (Pty) Ltd (PPI).  These day hospitals will be developed over the next 24 months. The transaction will be 
concluded by the transfer of 10,000,000 Advanced Health Limited shares at R 1.70 per share to IHCT and PPI.  Purchase consideration is 
therefore R 17 million and all the subsidiaries are start-up companies. 

 

Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed:  

    

                   Acquisitions 
above  

 Group 
provisional 

fair value 
adjustments  

 Provisional 
values on 

acquisition  

                   R'000   R'000   R'000  

Net identifiable assets and liabilities 
    

                   -                     -                     -  

Goodwill on acquisition 
        

          17,000                     -          17,000  

Total consideration paid in shares 
     

          17,000                     -          17,000  
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Company statement of financial position 
             

Notes 

       2014  
R'000  

Assets 
        

Non-current Assets 
       

    110,331  

Investments in subsidiaries 
     

37 
 

   110,331           

Current Assets 
       

     97,537  

Trade and other receivables 
     

38 
 

        1,688  

Loans to group companies 
     

39 
 

        4,369  

Cash and cash equivalents 
     

40 
 

      91,480  

Total Assets 
       

    207,869           

Equity and Liabilities 
        

Capital and Reserves 
       

      207,067  

Stated capital 
     

41 
 

    208,378  

Retained earnings 
       

      (1,311)  

Total Equity 
       

      207,067           

Current liabilities 
       

              802  

Trade and other payables 
     

42 
 

              802  

Total Equity and Liabilities 
       

      207,869  

 

 

 

 

Company statement of comprehensive income 
  

        Notes 

       2014  
R'000 

Continuing operations       
Other operating expenses    34           (2,684)  

Investment income    35             1,416  

Finance costs    36                (43)  

Profit before taxation               (1,311)  

       
Profit/ (loss) after taxation                (1,311)  

       
Other comprehensive income for the year       
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss        
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year                        -  

Total comprehensive income                 (1,311)  

       
Profit attributable to:       
Owners of the parent               (1,311)  

                (1,311)  
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Company statement of changes in equity 
 

 Share 
capital 

R’000 

Retained 
earnings 

R’000 

Total equity 

R’000 

Balance at 30 June 2013 - - - 

Profit for the year - (1,311) (1,311) 

Other comprehensive income for the year - - - 

Share issued for acquisition of subsidiaries 110,331 - 110,331 

Specific issue of shares 20,000 - 20,000 

General Issue of shares 81,284 - 81,284 

Capital raising fees (3,237) - (3,237) 

Balance at 30 June 2014 208,378 - 207,067 

Notes 41   

 

 

 

 

Company statement of cash flow 

            Notes 

       2014  
R'000  

Cash flows from operating activities         
Cash generated by operations      43            (3,571)  

Investment income      35              1,416  

Finance costs      36                (43)  

Net cash from operating activities                   (2,198)  

         
Cash flows from financing activities         
Proceeds from issue of share capital                101,284  

Capital raising fees                  (3,237)  

Loan advanced to group companies                  (4,369)  

Net cash (used in)/generated by financing activities                   93,678  

           

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents                  91,480  

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year                           -  

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period                   91,480  
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Notes to the company financial statements 
 

34. Operating profit/(loss) before finance costs 2014 

R’000 

Other expenses 2,684 

 2,684 

 

35. Investment income 

Interest received – bank 1,416 

 1,416 

 

 

36. Finance costs 2014 

R’000 

Bank 43 

 43 

 

37. Investment in subsidiaries 

 

 

Company name  

   

 

Nature of business  

Percentage 
ownership 

2014 
 (%)  

Percentage 
ownership 

2013 
 (%)  

2014  
R'000  

Presmed Australia (Pty) Ltd Day hospital services              94.6                     -            90,466  

Advanced Health South Africa (Pty) Ltd Day hospital services               100                     -            19,865       
       110,331  

 

38. Trade and other receivables 

 

Financial instruments 
 

Other receivables 
 

            1,041    
            1,041     

Non-financial instruments 
 

Prepayment 
 

              120  

VAT 
 

              527    
              647  

Trade and other receivables             1,688  

 
Currencies 

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies: 

Rand 

 

1,688  

 
Fair value of trade and other receivables 
The directors estimate the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximate their fair value, the difference between fair 
value and carrying amount is insignificant.  

 
Trade receivables disclosed above are classified as loans and receivables and are therefore measured at amortised cost.  The average 
collection period is 30 days.  

 
Exposure to credit risk 
The carrying amount of trade and other receivables represents the maximum credit exposure. 

South Africa 1,688  
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Credit quality 

The following represents information on the credit quality of trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired: 

 2014 

R’000 

A 100% 

 
A - The debtors are of good credit quality and no default in payment is expected. 

 

39. Loans to/(from) group companies 

Subsidiaries 

Advanced Health South Africa (Pty) Ltd 4,369 

 4,369 

 

Current assets 4,369 

 4,369 

 

The above loan is unsecured, interest free with no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying amount of the loan approximates the fair 
value. The current portion represents the amount expected to be settled within 12 months. In the director's estimate the carrying 
amounts approximates the fair value, the difference between fair value and carrying amount is insignificant. 

 

40. Cash and cash equivalents 

Bank and cash balances 91,480 

 91,480 

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents represents the maximum credit exposure. 

 

41. Share capital 

Authorised  
         

 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares  
        

          

 Issued  
         

 211,614,801 (2013: 3 ) ordinary shares  
        

 Share capital  
        

        211,615            

Reconciliation of number of shares issued '000' 
      

Shares issued for acquisition of subsidiaries 
     

        110,331  

Specific issue of shares 
        

          20,000  

General issue of shares 
        

          81,284          
          211,615            

The unissued shares are under the control of the directors until the forthcoming annual general meeting.  
Reconciliation of stated capital 

        

 Stated 
capital 

’000 

Balance as at 1 July 2013 
        

                   -  

Shares issued for acquisition of subsidiaries 
     

        110,331  

Capital raising fees 
        

          (3,237)  

Specific issue of shares 
        

          20,000  

General issue of shares 
        

          81,284  

Balance as at 30 June 2014 
       

        208,378  

 

 

42. Trade and other payables 
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 2014 

R’000 

Financial instruments 
         

Trade payables 
        

                75  

Other payables 
        

              211          
                286  

Non-financial instruments  
         

Other accruals 
        

              516  

Trade and other payables 
       

                802            

Currencies 
         

The carrying amount of trade and other payables are denominated in the following currencies: 
  

Rand 
        

            1,088          
              1,088  

Fair value of trade and other payables 

The average credit period on purchases of goods and services is 60 days. No interest is charged on the trade payables for the first 
60 days from the date of the invoice. Thereafter, interest is charged at 2% per annum on the outstanding balance. Due to the short term 
nature of the group's trade and other payables, the carrying value approximates their fair value. Trade payables are subject to normal 
industry settlement terms. 

 

43. Cash generated by operations 

Profit before tax 
        

          (1,312)  

Adjustments for non-cash items: 
         

 - Finance costs 
         

                43  

- Investment income 
         

          (1,416)            
          (2,685)  

Operating income/(loss) before changes in working capital 
       

 - Trade and other receivables 
        

          (1,687)  

 - Trade and other payables 
         

              801            
          (3,571)  

44. Financial risk management 
Introduction and overview  
 
Refer to note 29 of the Group annual financial statements for applicable accounting policy.  

 

Credit risk  

Financial instruments exposed to credit risk at reporting date are as follows:  

Financial instrument 
          

Trade and other receivables 
       

            1,041  

Cash and cash equivalents 
       

         91,480  

Loans to group companies 
       

            4,369           
            96,890  

 

Refer to note 29 of the Group annual financial statements for applicable accounting policy on managing credit risk. 
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Liquidity risk  

Refer to note 29 of the Group annual financial statements for applicable accounting policy on managing liquidity risk. 

 

The following liquid resources are available. 

Financial assets 

 

2014 

R’000 

Cash and cash equivalents 
        

        91,480  

Trade and other receivables 
        

          1,041          
          92,521  

The following are contractual maturities of financial liabilities 

 <1 year 1 year – 
5 years 

Total 

Financial liabilities    

Trade and other payables 286 - 286 

Total financial liabilities 286 - 286 

 

45. Comparative figures 

The company was incorporated on 10 April 2013 with R 3 ordinary shares.  Therefore no comparative figures are shown.  

 

 

Shareholder Analysis 

 

Shareholders holding more than 5% of the total issued share capital 

 

Shareholder No. of Shares % Holding 

Eenhede Konsultante (Pty) Ltd 85 131 107 40,23% 

PresMedical Withbank (Pty) Ltd 14 530 500 6,87% 

 

Categories of shareholders – public vs non-public 

 

Shareholder % Holding 

Public (47%) 100,423,195 

Non-public (53%) 111,191,606 

 211,614,801 

 

 

Shareholder Diary 

 

Annual general meeting    27 November 2014 

Interim period     31 December 2014 

Expected reporting date for interim results  24 February 2015 

Financial year-end     30 June 2015 

Financial statements – expected publication dates 31 August 2015 

Annual general meeting    20 October 2015 
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Notice of Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 

 

       Advanced Health Limited 

       (Incorporated in South Africa) 

       (Registration number:  2013/059246/06) 

       Share code: AVL  ISIN: ZAE000189049 

       (“Advanced” or “the company”) 

 

 

 

Notice is hereby given that the 2014 annual general meeting of the company will be held at Crossway Office Park, Building B, Corner of 
Lenchen and Jean Avenue, Centurion on 27 November 2014 at 10h00 for the following purposes: 

 

Notes 

An ordinary resolution requires the support of more than 50% of the voting rights exercised on the resolution by shareholders present 
or represented by proxy at the annual general meeting and entitled to exercise voting rights on the resolution is required. 

 

A special resolution require the support of 75% of the voting rights exercised on the resolution by shareholders present or represented 
by proxy at the annual general meeting and entitled to exercise voting rights on the resolution is required. 

 

The above will be the required voting rights unless mentioned otherwise in the resolution notice. 

 

Ordinary resolutions 1 : Audited Financial statements 

That the audited financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2014, together with the report of the directors and the report 
of the auditors thereon, be received and approved. 

 

The summarised consolidated annual financial statements for 2014 are included in the integrated report.  A copy of the full audited 
annual financial statements is available on the company’s website at www.advancedhealth.co.za.   

 

Ordinary resolution 2 : Appointment of directors appointed by the board since the previous annual general meeting 

To, in accordance with article 5.1(5) of the MOI, confirm, each by way of a separate vote, the appointment of the following director, 
appointed by the board since the previous annual general meeting:    

2.1 Dr J Oelofse 

2.2 Mr PJ Jaffe 

2.3 Dr WT Mthembu 

2.4 Mr YJ Visser 

2.5 Mr FA van Hoogstraten 

 

The eligibility of the above directors has been assessed and the board accepts the results of the assessment. Accordingly, the board 
recommends the election of the above directors to shareholders.  

Brief CVs of the directors are provided on pages 6 to 7 of the integrated annual report. 

 

Ordinary resolution 3 : Auditors 

To re-appoint Mazars Gauteng Inc. as the company's auditors with Manoj Manilal being the designated audit partner. 
 

Section 90(1) of the Companies Act requires the company to appoint an auditor each year at its annual general meeting.  The audit and 
risk committee nominated Mazars Gauteng Inc. to be the independent auditors of the company and Manoj Manilal to be the designated 
audit partner and accordingly recommends that Mazars Gauteng Inc and Manoj Manilal be appointed as independent auditors and 
designated audit partner, respectively 

 

 

 

http://www.advancedhealth.co.za/


Advanced Health Limited Integrated Report 2014 74 | P a g e  

 

Ordinary resolution 4 : Auditors remuneration 

To authorised the audit and risk committee to determine the remuneration of the auditors. 

 

Ordinary resolution 5 : Appoint chairman to the Audit and Risk Committee 

That PJ Jaffe, an independent non-executive director of the Company, be appointed as member and chairman of the audit and risk 
committee until the next annual general meeting. 

Brief CVs of the directors are provided on pages 6 to 7 of the integrated annual report. 

 

Ordinary resolution 6 : Audit and Risk Committee 

Re-electing all the members of the audit and risk committee, who offer themselves for re-election, in terms of Section 94(2) of the 
Companies Act, namely: 

6.1 Dr WT Mthembu 

6.2 Mr FA van Hoogstraten 

Brief CVs of the directors are provided on pages 6 to 7 of the integrated annual report. 

 

Ordinary Resolution 7 : Approval of the company’s remuneration policy 

RESOLVED THAT, as a non-binding vote, the company’s remuneration policy as set out in the remuneration report on page 8 of the 
integrated report be and is hereby confirmed. 

 

King III recommends that every year the company’s remuneration policy should be tabled to shareholders for a non-binding advisory 
vote at the annual general meeting. This vote enables shareholders to express their views on the remuneration policies adopted and on 
their implementation. The remuneration committee prepared and the board considered and accepted the remuneration policy, as set 
out on page 8 of the integrated annual report and shareholders are required to vote on this policy. 

 

Ordinary Resolution 8 : Authority of directors 

RESOLVED THAT any director or the company secretary be and is hereby authorised to do all such things and sign all such 
documentation as are necessary to give effect to the ordinary and special resolutions set out in the notice, hereby ratifying and 
confirming all such things already done and documentation already signed.  

 

Ordinary resolution 9: General Power and authority to issue shares for cash 

RESOLVED THAT subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, the Listings Requirements of the JSE and the company’s memorandum 
of incorporation, as a general authority valid until the next annual general meeting of the company and provided that it shall not extend 
past 15 months from the date of this annual general meeting, the authorised but unissued ordinary shares of the company be and are 
hereby placed under the control of the directors who are hereby authorised to allot, issue, grant options over or otherwise deal with or 
dispose of these shares to such persons at such times and on such terms and conditions and for such consideration whether payable in 
cash or otherwise, as the directors may think fit, provided that: 

• the shares which are the subject of the issue for cash must be of a class already in issue, or where this is not the case, must be 
limited to such equity securities or rights that are convertible into a class already in issue; 

• this authority shall not endure beyond the next annual general meeting of the company nor shall it endure beyond 15 months 
from the date of this meeting; 

• the shares must be issued only to public shareholders (as defined in the Listings Requirements of the JSE) and not to related 
parties (as defined in the Listings Requirements of the JSE); 

• upon any issue of shares which, together with prior issues during any financial year, will constitute 5% or more of the number 
of shares of the class in issue, the company shall by way of an announcement on Stock Exchange News Service (“SENS”), give 
full details thereof, including the effect on the net asset value of the company and earnings per share; 

• the number of ordinary shares issued for cash shall not, in the current financial year, in aggregate, exceed 50% of the 
Company’s issued ordinary shares (including securities which are compulsorily convertible into shares of that class); 

• any equity securities issued under the authority during the period contemplated in paragraph 5.50(b) must be deducted from 
such number above and 

• the maximum discount at which shares may be issued is 10% of the weighted average traded price of the company’s shares 
over the 30 business days prior to the date that the price of the issue is determined or agreed by the directors of the 
applicant.” 

 

Under the JSE Listings Requirement this resolution has to be passed by achieving 75% majority of the votes cast in favour of such 
resolution by all members present or represented by proxy and entitled to vote at the annual general meeting. 
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Special Resolution 1 : Approval of non-executive director’s fees 

RESOLVED THAT the fees payable to non-executive directors of the company, members and chairman of board committees for the year 
starting 1 December 2014 and ending at the date of the next annual general meeting, as set out below, be approved. 

 

 2014 2015 

Director Retainer Attendance 
fee* 

Retainer Attendance 
fee* 

Mr PJ Jaffe  - 2,285 - 2,342 

Mr AF van Hoogstraten R120,000pa R7,200 R127,800pa R7,668 

Dr WT Mthembu R80,000pa R5,000 R85,200pa R5,325 

Dr J Oelofse R80,000pa R5,000 R85,200pa R5,325 

Mr YJ Visser R40,000pa R2,500 R42,600pa R2,663 

 

* Per meeting 

 - Australian Dollar 

 

Special resolution 2 : Financial assistance 

RESOVLED THAT, to the extent required by the Companies Act, the board of directors of the company may, subject to compliance with 
requirements of the company’s Memorandum of Incorporation, the Companies Act and the JSE Listings Requirements, each as presently 
constituted and as amended from time to time, authorise the company to provide direct or indirect financial assistance in terms of 
section 45 of the Companies Act by way of loans, guarantees, the provisions of security or otherwise, to any of its present or future 
subsidiaries and/or any other company or corporation that is or becomes related or inter-related (as defined in the Companies Ac) to 
the company for any purpose or in connection with any matter, such authority to endure until the next annual general meeting of the 
company. 

 

 

By order of the Board, 

 

 

 

 

 

M Janse van Rensburg 

Company secretary 

27 October 2014 

 

 

 

 

Transfer Secretaries 

Trifecta Capital Services Proprietary Limited 

31 Beacon Road 

Florida North 

1709 
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Proxy Form 

       Advanced Health Limited 

       (Incorporated in South Africa) 

       (Registration number:  2013/059246/06) 

       Share code: AVL  ISIN: ZAE000189049 

       (“Advanced” or “the company”) 

 

 

For use by the holders of the company’s certificated linked units and/or dematerialised linked-units held through a Central Securities 
Depository Participant or broker who have selected “own name” registration at the 2014 annual general meeting of members of the 
company to be held Crossway Office Park, Building B, Corner of Lenchen and Jean Avenue, Centurion on 27 November 2014 at 10h00.  

 

I/We (name in block letters)________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Of ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Being the holder of ___________________________________________________ ordinary shares of the company,  

 

hereby appoint: _________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

or failing him/her,  the chairman of the annual general meeting 

 

As my/our proxy to act for me/us on my/our behalf at the annual general meeting or any adjournment thereof, which will be held for 
purposes of considering and, if deemed fit, passing, with or without modification, the ordinary and special resolutions to be proposed 
thereat as detailed in the notice of annual general meeting; and to vote for and/or against such resolutions and/or abstain from voting 
for and/against the resolutions in respect of the ordinary shares in my/our name in accordance with the following instructions: 

 

 For Against Abstain 

Ordinary resolution 1 : Approval of Financial Statements    

Ordinary resolution 2.1 : Approval of Dr J Oelofse as director    

Ordinary resolution 2.2 : Approval of Mr PJ Jaffe as director    

Ordinary resolution 2.3 : Approval of Dr WT Mthembu as director    

Ordinary resolution 2.4 : Approval of Mr YJ Visser as director    

Ordinary resolution 2.5 : Approval of Mr FA van Hoogstraten as director    

Ordinary resolution 3 : Approval of auditors    

Ordinary resolution 4 : Approval of auditors remuneration    

Ordinary resolution 5 : Approval of Mr PJ Jaffe as member and chairman of the audit and risk 
committee 

   

Ordinary resolution 6.1 : Approval of Dr WT Mthembu as member of the audit and risk committee    

Ordinary resolution 6.2 : Approval of Mr FA van Hoogstraten as member of the audit and risk 
committee 

   

Ordinary resolution 7 : Approval of the company’s remuneration policy    

Ordinary resolution 8 : General authority for directors and company secretary    

Ordinary resolution 9 : General power and authority to issue shares for cash    

Special resolution 1 : Approval of non-executive director’s remuneration    

Special resolution 2 : Financial assistance    

 

Signed at _________________________________________________________ on_________________________________ 2014 

 

 

Signature __________________________________________ 
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Notes 

 

1. Any alteration or correction made to this form of proxy must be initialled by the signatory(ies). 

 

2.  Every shareholder present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote at the Annual General Meeting of the Company shall, on a 
show of hands, have one vote only, irrespective of the number of shares such shareholder holds.  In the event of a poll, every 
shareholder shall be entitled to that proportion of the total votes in the Company which the aggregate amount of the nominal value 
of the shares held by such shareholder bears to the aggregate amount of the nominal value of all the  shares issued by the 
Company. 

 

A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend, speak 
and vote in his/her stead. A proxy need not be a registered shareholder of the Company. 

 

3. A shareholder may insert the name of a proxy or the names of two alternative proxies of the shareholder’s choice in the space/s 
provided overleaf, with or without deleting “the chairperson of the Annual General Meeting”, but any such deletion must be 
initialled by the shareholder. Should this space/s be left blank, the proxy will be exercised by the chairperson of the Annual General 
Meeting. The person whose name appears first on the form of proxy and who is present at the Annual General Meeting will be 
entitled to act. 

 

4. A shareholder’s voting instructions to the proxy must be indicated by the insertion of an “X”, or the number of votes which that 
shareholder wishes to exercise, in the appropriate spaces provided overleaf. Failure to do so will be deemed to authorise the proxy 
to vote or to abstain from voting at the Annual General Meeting as he/she thinks fit in respect of all the shareholder’s exercisable 
votes. A shareholder or his/her proxy is not obliged to use all the votes exercisable by him/her or by his/her proxy, but the total 
number of votes cast, or those in respect of which abstention is recorded, may not exceed the total number of votes exercisable by 
the shareholder or by his/her proxy. 

 

5. A minor must be assisted by his/her parent or guardian unless the relevant documents establishing his/her legal capacity are 
produced or have been registered by the transfer secretaries of the Company. 

 

6. Documentary evidence establishing the authority of a person signing this form of proxy in a representative capacity must be 
attached to this form of proxy unless previously recorded by the transfer secretaries or waived by the chairperson of the Annual 
General Meeting. 

 

7. The completion and lodging of this form of proxy will not preclude the relevant shareholder from attending the Annual General 
Meeting and speaking and voting in person thereat to the exclusion of any proxy appointed in terms hereof, should such 
shareholder wish to do so. 

 

8. The appointment of a proxy in terms of this form of proxy is revocable in terms of the provisions of section 58(4)(c) read with 
section 58(5) of the Companies Act, and accordingly a shareholder may revoke the proxy appointment by cancelling it in writing, or 
making a later inconsistent appointment of a proxy, and delivering a copy of the revocation instrument to the proxy and to the 
Company. 

 

9. The chairperson of the Annual General Meeting may accept any form of proxy which is completed other than in accordance with 
these instructions provided that he is satisfied as to the manner in which a shareholder wishes to vote. 

 

To be valid, the completed forms of proxy must be lodged with the transfer secretaries of the Company, Trifecta : 

 

Hand deliveries to:     E-mail address: advanced-health@trifectacapital.com   

31 Beacon Road     

Florida North       

1709        

        

 

 

 

To be received by no later than 10h00 on Tuesday, 25 November 2014. 

 

mailto:advanced-health@trifectacapital.com
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Summary of rights established by section 58 of the Companies Act, 71 of 2008 (“Companies Act”), as required in terms of subsection 
58(8)(b)(i) 

1. A shareholder may at any time appoint any individual, including a non-shareholder of the company, as a proxy to participate 
in, speak and vote at a shareholders’ meeting on his or her behalf (section 58(1)a)), or to give or withhold consent on behalf of 
the shareholder to a decision in terms of section 60 (shareholders acting other than at a meeting) (section 58(1)(b)). 

 

2. A proxy appointment must be in writing, dated and signed by the shareholder and remains valid for one year after the date on 
which it was signed or any longer or shorter period expressly set out in the appointment, unless it is revoked in terms of 
paragraph 6.3 or expires earlier in terms of paragraph 10.4 below (section 58(2)). 

 

3. A shareholder may appoint two or more persons concurrently as proxies and may appoint more than one proxy to exercise 
voting rights attached to different securities held by the shareholders (section 58(3)(a)). 

 

4. A proxy may delegate his or her authority to act on behalf of the shareholder to another person, subject to any restrictions set 
out in the instrument appointing the proxy (proxy instrument) (section 58(3)(b). 

 

5. A copy of the proxy instrument must be delivered to the company, or to any other person acting on behalf of the company, 
before the proxy exercises any rights of the shareholder at a shareholder’s meeting (section 58(3)(c)) and in terms of the 
memorandum of incorporation (“MOI”) of the company at least 48 hours before the meeting commences. 

 

6. Irrespective of the form of instrument used to appoint a proxy: 

6.1 the appointment is suspended at any time and to the extent that the shareholder chooses to act directly and in person 
in the exercise of any rights as a shareholder (section 58(4)(a)); 

6.2 The appointment is revocable unless the proxy appointment expressly states otherwise (section 58(4)(b); and 

6.3 If the appointment is revocable, a shareholder may revoke the proxy appointment by cancelling it in writing or by 
making a later, inconsistent appointment of a proxy, and delivering a copy of the revocation instrument to the proxy and 
to the company (section 58(4)(c)). 

 

7. The revocation of a proxy appointment constitutes a complete and final cancellation of the proxy’s authority to act on behalf 
of the shareholder as of the later of the date stated in the revocation instrument, if any, or the date on which the revocation 
instrument was delivered as contemplated in paragraph 6.3 above (section 58(5)). 

 

8. If the proxy instrument has been delivered to a company, as long as that appointment remains in effect, any notice required 
by the Companies Act or the company’s MOI to be delivered by the company to the shareholder but be delivered by the 
company to the shareholder (section 58(6)(a)), or the proxy or proxies, if the shareholder has directed the company to so in 
writing and paid any reasonable fee charged by the company for doing so (section 58(6)(b)). 

 

9. A proxy is entitled to exercise, or abstain from exercising, any voting rights of the shareholder without redirection, except to 
the extent that the MOI or proxy instrument provides otherwise (section 58(7)). 

 

10. If a company issues an invitation to shareholders to appoint one or more persons named by the company as a proxy, or 
supplies a form of proxy instrument: 

10.1 the invitation must be sent to every shareholder entitled to notice of the meeting at which the proxy is intended to be 

exercised (section 58(8)(a)); 

10.2 the invitation or form of proxy instrument supplied by the company must: 

10.2.1 bear a reasonable prominent summary of the rights established in section 58 of the Companies Act 

(section 58(8)(b)(i)); 

10.2.2 contain adequate blank space, immediately preceding the name(s) of any person(s) named in it, to enable a 

shareholder to write the name, and if desired, an alternative name of proxy chosen by the shareholder 

(section 58(8)(b)(ii)); and 

10.2.3 provide adequate space for the shareholder to indicate whether the appointment proxy is to vote in favour 

of or against any resolution(s) to be put at the meeting, or is to abstain from voting (section 58(8)(b)(iii)). 

10.3 The company must not require that the proxy appointment be made irrevocable (section 58(8)(c); and 

10.4 The proxy appointment remains valid only until the end of the meeting at which it was intended to be used, subject to 

paragraph 7 above (section 58(8)(d)). 
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Fact Sheet 

 
Company Details 

Advanced Health Limited 

Registration number: 2013/059246/06 

 

Registered address 

Ground Floor, One Health Building 

Woodmead North Office Park 

54 Maxwell Drive 

Woodmead, 2157 

(PO Box 1476, Silverton, 0127) 

 

Directors 

J Oelofse 

YJ Visser 

PJ Jaffe 

MC Resnik* 

WT Mthembu 

FA van Hoogstraten (chairman) 

CJPG van Zyl* 

CA Grillenberger* 

* - Executive 

 - Australian 

Chairman of the Board : Mr FA van Hoogstraten 

Chief Executive Officer : Mr CA Grillenberger 

 

Designated Advisor 

Arbor Capital Sponsors Proprietary Limited 

Ground Floor, One Health Building 

Woodmead North Office Park 

54 Maxwell Drive 

Woodmead, 2157 

(Suite #39, Private Bag X29, Gallo Manor, 3063) 

 

Transfer Secretaries 

Trifecta Capital Services Proprietary Limited 

31 Beacon Road 

Florida North, 1709 

(PO Box 61272, Marshalltown, 2107) 

 

Commercial Bankers 

ABSA Bank Limited 

2nd floor, Block G 

Lourie Place, Hillcrest Office Park 

(177 Dyer Road, Hillcrest, Pretoria, 0083) 
 
 
 
 
 

Commercial Bankers  
Grindrod Bank Limited 
(Registration number 1994/007994/06) 
5th Floor Protea Place 
40 Dreyer Street, Claremont 
Western Cape 
(Postnet Suite 64, Private Bag X1005, Claremont, 7735) 
 

External Auditors 

Mazars Gauteng Incorporated 

434 Rigel Avenue 

Erasmusrand, 0181 

(Private Bag X4, Hatfield, 0028) 

 

Attorneys 

Phatshoane Henny Inc. 

35 Markgraaff Street 

Bloemfontein, 9301 

(PO Box 153 or 260, Bloemfontein, 9300) 

 

Company Secretary 

M Janse van Rensburg 

 

Listing Details 

Johannesburg Stock Exchange 

Sector : Healthcare 

Share code : AVL 

ISIN Code : ZAE000189049 

 

Listing date : 25 April 2014 

 

Website address : www.advancedhealth.co.za 

 

Year-end : 30 June 

 

Contact Details 

Marti.g@advancedhealth.co.za 

Tel : (012) 110 4161/2/3 

Fax : 086 604 8280 

 

Share price (cents per share) 

High – 320c 

Low – 125c 

Avg – 200c 

 

Annual general meeting : 27 November 2014 

 

 

http://www.advancedhealth.co.za/
mailto:Marti.g@advancedhealth.co.za

